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Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.Dh.gov

July 26. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrhent of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing retroactive, sole source agreements with the vendors listed below for the
provision of substance use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing,
and wraparound services for pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance
use disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or
at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by $1,000,000 from $2,962,652
to $3,962,652 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30,
2020, effective retroactive to June 30 2019, upon Governor and Executive Council
approval.100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name
Vendor

Number
Location

Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Families In

Transition

157730-

B001
Manchester $1,498,414 $500,000 $1,998,414

0: 9/21/16 (Item #11.
Vote 5-0)

A1: 4/19/17 (Item
#5A, Vote 5-0)

A2: 6/21/17 (Item#

20A. Vote 5-0)

A3: 6/20/18 (Late
Item #F, Vote 5-0)

Hope on Haven
Hill. Inc.

275119-

BQ01
Rochester $1,464,238 $500,000 $1,964,238

0: 8/3/16 (Late item
#A. Vote 5-0)

A1: 4/19/17 (Item
#5A. Vote 5-0)

A2: 6/21/17 (Item
#20A. Vote 5-0)

A3: 7/27/18 (Item #6,
Vote 5-0)

Total: $2,962,652 $1,000,000 $3,962,652
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Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for
State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-45^50010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget.
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $981,326 $0 $981,326

2018 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $981,326 $0 $981,326

2019 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,000,000 .  $0 $1,000,000

2020 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Total: $2,962,652 $1,000,000 $3,962,652

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive to June 30, 2019 because there was a transition of the
contracts' oversight from one Department bureau to another close to the point of expiration. The
resulted in a need to ensure the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services had the ability to review,
understand and clarify the use of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families funding internally
and with the vendors.

The original agreement is sole source because the Contractors has been identified as
being among few providers in the State that having the ability and capacity to provide substance
use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing their child(ren) to remain
in the mother's care.

The purpose of this request is to continue the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.
The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use
disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child rriay need low or high intensity residential treatment.

Approximately thirty (30) families will be served by Hope on Haven Hill and fifty (50)
families will be served by Families in Transition, statewide, from July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2019. During SFY 2019, Hope on Haven Hill served fifty-five (55) families and Families in
Transition served 257 family members. Services provided by both agencies included daycare,
housing assistance and supports, group/family/individual counseling, and employment supports.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women who need housing and have
substance use disorders may not be found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use disorder could
result in,separation from their children.
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The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so
they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education. The
vendor will address needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the
children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the
purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The
services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate dependence on public assistance,
and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients' substance use
disorders.

The Contractor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are'not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers may not receive the substance use disorder treatment services they need,
and they may not be able to locate housing for themselves and their children.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 18NHTANF
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 4''^ Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Families in Transition (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street
Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 21, 2016 (Item #11), as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A): June 21, 2017 (Item
#20A): and June 20, 2018 (Item # 21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,998,414.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B - Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #4, SFY20 Budget.

Families in Transition Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be retroactively effective to June 30, 2019, upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date' ' Katja S. Fox
Director

%

Families In Transition

July 22, 2019 a
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard ^

President

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

state of New Hampshire county ofHIiisborough July 22, 2019 before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the

Indicated above.capac

nature/of Notary PudIic or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

nancy DESHARNAIS, Notary Pubto
My Commlsalon Expires August 3i 2021

Families in Transition Amendment #4

SS-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-03 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' Nam

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

•Date Name:

Title:

Families in Transition Amendment #4

SS.2017.DFA-02-OPEND-03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods,
personal care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual
family unless the parent is employed in which case services can be
extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement,
including training and education, and other employment-related
services that do not provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance, subject to Department approval which may include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.4.1. Dental services.

1.2.4.2. Auto registration.

1.2.4.3. Personal care.

1.2.4.4. Books and tuition.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide ASAM level 2.7 and lower Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) treatment, supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible
pregnant and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

1.4. The Contractor shall keep a record of how many individuals are screened, how
many are determined eligible, and how many are served, as specified in Section
1.3.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services or increase services that are
currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services currently
available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with the Department to review/assist
with program processes, service provision, and overall program outcomes.
Contractor shall work in collaboration with the Department to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws and
regulations which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using
individuals served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating
any research involving the subjects or participants related to this
contract. The Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to
reject any such human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents and sentinel events which
include, but are not limited to reporting:

1.9.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor
agrees that:

1.9.1.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or
situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious
harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well- being,
including but not limited to:

1.9.1.1.1. Abuse;

1.9.1.1.2. Neglect;

1.9.1.1.3. Exploitation;

1.9.1.1.4. Rights violation;

1.9.1.1.5. Missing person;

1.9.1.1.6. Medical emergency;

1.9.1.1.7. Restraint; or

1.9.1.1.8. Medical error.

1.9.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon
as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials |
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.9.3. All Media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no later than 24 hours following the incident;

1.9.4. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

1.9.4.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
individual who is receiving services under this contract;

1.9.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the Department,
which shall include:

1.9.4.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

1.9.4.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the Individual(s)
involved in the event;

1.9.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

1.9.4.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant
information, as well as the identification of any other
individuals involved;

1.9.4.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

1.9.4.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event.

1.9.4.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed "Sentinel Event Reporting Form"
(February 2017), available at
https://wv\rtv.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-
form.pdf to the Department.

1.9.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after

filing the form in Sectioni .9.4.3. above shall be reported to the
Department, in writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department; and

1.9.4.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 1.9.4.1
through 1.9.4.4 above if required by the department; and

1.9.4.6. Report the event in Sections 1.9.4.1 through 1.9.4.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Infomiation Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all
client activity and client contact within three (3) days following the activity or
contact as directed by the Department. The Contractor shall:

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS -> Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1. Screening.

1.10.1.2. Fee determination

1.10.1.3. Admission.

1.10.1.4. Billing.

1.10.1.5. Disenrollment.

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data.

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific
treatment goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

1.11. The Contractor shall, obtain written consent from the client utilizing the consent
form as provided by Department prior to providing services. The Contractor
shall ensure:

1.11.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent form is not:

1.11.1.1. Entered into the WITS (or approved alternative) system.

1.11.1.2. Provided services under this contract.

1.11.2. Any client refusing to sign the consent form is assisted with finding
alternative payers for necessary services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
have access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as
available.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

Families In Transition Exhibit A - Amendment ifA Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Preyentlon and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to
end their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting
women's ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting
women's substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served which may include, but are not limited
to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SLID treatment and
residential services for pregnant and parenting women and their
children distributed to the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.

2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models
and/or best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to
monitor case management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the client's Substance Use Disorder

diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DSM-5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial
evaluation completed in accordance with Technical Assistance
Publication (TAP) 21: Addiction Counseling Competencies, available
at http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-Counseling-
Competencies/SMAI 5-4171.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. This may include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD)
residential treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 826.

mFamilies in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment UA Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up
to four (4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite
substance use disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may
include, but is not limited to, apartments within an apartment complex,
group housing, or shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing
services shall be limited to 4 months based off the TANF regulations
around non-assistance categories.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization
Services that allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving

scheduled onsite SUD treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first
24 hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services
and after being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment

services, as appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of
Sudden Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used
to promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or
sleeping. For detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.Org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.0rg/content/pediatrics/l 28/5/e1341 .f
ull.pdf.

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be
licensed but should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to
developmentally appropriate childcare.

2.8.4. Supports for before and after school care are available for school age
children.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.8.5. Arrangements are in place that allow children to continue attending
school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Contact the Doonway in the client's area to connect the client with
SUD treatment services.

2.9.2. Assist the client with accessing services by:

2.9.2.1. Identifying alternate providers.

2.9.2.2. Actively reaching out to alternate providers on behalf of the
client.

2.9.3. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative
provider. These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.3.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.3.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.3.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on

the fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.3.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess
and respond.

2.9.4. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC),
and Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.4.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.9.4.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.4.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.4.4. Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.

2.9.4.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.5. Establish and maintain a waiting list that monitors the wait time for
clients to receive services, from the date of initial contact to the date
clients first receive services, other than screening and assessment.
The Contractor shall ensure the waiting list includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.5.1. A unique patient identifier;

2.9.5.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment;

Families in Transilion Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor InlUalsW2.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.9.5.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services;

2.9.5.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services; and

2.9.5.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.9.6. Provide a monthly report to the Department, indicating the average
wait time for all clients, by type of service and payer source.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco education and treatment to all clients

receiving services. The Contractor shall;

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation In stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all
clients based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013)
domains. The Contractor shall;

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written
in temis that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment when
appropriate.

2.11.4. Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD)
records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider,
that safeguards, including consent and notices required by 42 CFR
Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to;

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not
limited to, linking women with community services within the area in
which she will be permanently housed after receiving treatment
services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children
have access to the treatment plan-specific services.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are
not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid or other private
insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP
27: Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-
for-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but
are not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling.

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers
working within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Nonclinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling
services for clients and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this contract, which shall include medical and behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health
Facility Rules, Part He-P 826 Rules for Residential Treatment and
Rehatjilitation. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited
to:

2.14.1. A minimum of one licensed supervisor, defined as:

iaisFamilies in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

SS-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03 Page9of14 Date ^*^*7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.14.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADO); or

2.14.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds
eth Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

2.14.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

2.14.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided
and the number of clients served including, but not limited to:

2.14.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCs, LADCs and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice of
Board of Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any
clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

2.14.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have

completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health Practice of Board, or Psychology and are working to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.3. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.3. Ensuring no licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve
(12) staff, in accordance with evidence-based practices.

2.14.4. Providing ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals
in accordance with evidence based practices, at a minimum:

2.14.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources of
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic
assessment of progress.

2.14.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)
through staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Public Health Epidemiologist in order to
collect data, complete surveillance, and complete evaluation of social
determinants of health and other public health and community health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB &
STDs. The Contractor shall;

2.16.1. Ensure In-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served and ensure the safety of
clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as
well as at discharge based on policies and processes approved by
the Department within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures'within 3 months of the
contract effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy
and procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their
children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster
situations through continuous staff development that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for
any eligible services.

2.18.2. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from
sources the contractor may identify.

2.18.3. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has
in place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for
all program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor
shall ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or
community partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective
action plan described in Section 6.1, as monitored by the Department, until such
time the Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing
services in the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the number of individuals
screened, determined eligible, and served as provided in Section 1.4.

3.3. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents, as provided in Section 1.9, as
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours following the incident.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

3.4. The Contractor shall report on sentinel events, as specified in Section 1.9, no
later than 72 hours of the event occurring.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on their efforts to conduct third-
party billing for any eligible services and seek alternate sources of funding for
non-billable services, as provided in Sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no
later than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described
in Section 2.9.5 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per
week.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled In program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite

employment programming to increase in financial stability and reduce
dependence of public assistance.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
(3) receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of
the services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of fifty (50)
familiesiin the Manchester, NH region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to
the Department for approval no later than sixty (60) days from the contract
effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from
the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections 2.8.2 and
2.17.1 to the Department no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective
date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9.5
and 2.9.6 to the Department once every two (2) months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section
2.17.3 to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit A - Amendment #4

5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in
trainings described in Section 2.17.5 to the Department no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.18.1
to the Department for review and approval no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

6. Contract Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.1.1. The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified
by the Department.

6.1.2. The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccurrence(s) of each deficiency.

6.1.3. The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above.

6.1.4. A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified
in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above are effective.

6.1.5. The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation
and effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

Families in Transition Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
in accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalog of Federal and
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Program, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 18NHTANF.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10^) working day of each month,
which Identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month.

3.2. The Contractor shall have documentation available upon request covering the same
period as the invoice in Section 3.1 that identifies all payments made on behalf of each
client, including the purpose for each payment, the payee for each payment, and any
appropriate backup documentation.

3.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.4. The invoice shall be submitted by mail through the US Postal Services or email to:

Director

Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
Email: Annette.escalante@dhhs.nh.gov

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from the Form
P37, General Provisions. Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Any request to adjust a prior invoice must be accompanied by supporting documentation and
is subject to Department approval.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the sen/ices provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

8. Non Reimbursement for Services

Families in Transition. Exhibit B • Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS Homeiessness Prevention & Support for
Low Income Pregnant and Prenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit B - Amendment #4

8.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client Is or may be eligible for an alternative payer for sen/ices described in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work including, but not limited to:

8.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicald programs for clients who
are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

8.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare.

8.1.3. Services covered by a client's private insurer(s).

8.2. Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not
covered by the payers listed in Section 8.1.

9. The Contractor shall:

9.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided under this
contract from public and private Insurance plans, the clients, and the Department.

9.2. Utilize a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the greatest
degree possible In order to not delay a client's admittance into the program and to
immediately refund any overpayments.

9.3. Maintain accurate accounting and records for all sen/ices billed, payments received
and overpayments refunded.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment

10.1. The Contractor shall:

10.1.1. Review the Invoice and associated backup documentation no later than twenty
(20) days following the last day of the billing month and submit the Invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.1.2. Correct any errors In the invoice and documentation no later than seven (7)
days after being notified of the errors, and submit the corrected invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days after the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

11. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services.

Families in Transition. Exhibit B - Amendment #4 Contractor initials
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID; 207982

Certificate Number 0004506562

0&

B&.

o ■0

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTERED TRADE NAME

OF

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION

This is to certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is registered in this office as doing business under the Trade Name FAMILIES IN

TRANSITION, at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH. 03101, USA on 1/2/2018 10:46:00 AM.

The nature of business is Other / Hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe affordable bousing and supportive services

Expiration Date: 1/2/2023 10:46:00 AM

Business ID: 785244

u.

©

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my band and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of January AD. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



of ^amp2f|tre
F.iling fee: $50.00
Use black print of type. rsor* ̂ 9

APPLICATION FOR REOiSTRATION OF TRADE NAME

Filed

Date Filed: 01/02/2018 10:46:00 AM

EfTective Date : 01/02/2018 10:46KX) AM

Filit« I: 3796972 Pages:!
BusiiKSS ID: 785244

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
State of New Hampshire

fPLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY)

1. Business name: Families in Transition
(Name cannot Include 'INC." or other corporate designation)

2. Business address: 122 Market Street. Manchester. New Hampshire 03101
No. & street City / town State Zip

Mailing address (If different): —
No. & Street City/town ^te Zip

3. Brief description of kind of business to be carried on (and if known, list the NAICS Code and Sub-

Code): Hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe affordable housing and supportive services.

4. Date business organized: January 1. 2018

5-A. BUSINESS APPLICANT: If the applicant Is a corporation or other entity. list corporation's or entity's
exact name and include title of person signing. If more space is needed for additional entity
applicants, please attach additional sheet(8).

FIT/NHNH. INC. 122 Market Street
Entity name (type or print) No. Street

Manchester. NH 03101

AUTHO^&O SIGNATURE Tos%n/Clty State Zip

LA>? ̂
5-B. INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS: Please type or print applicants' name(s). address(es) and include

signature. If more space Is needed for additional individual applicants, please attach additional
sheet(s).

1.

2.

Type or print name No. Street

SIGNATURE Town/City State Zip

Type or print name No. Street

SIGNATURE Tovm/Ctty State Zip

Business E-Mail:

Business Phone:

Please check if you would prefer to receive the Reminder Notice by email.

DISCLAIMER: Ali.documents filed with the Corporation Division become public records and will be available for
public inspection in either tangible or electronic form.

Mailing Address • Corporation Division. NH Dept. of Ststo, 107 N Main St, Rm 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
PKyslcai Location • State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Rm 317, 26 Capitol St, Concord, NH

FormTN-l Pg 1 (9/2015)



7/23/2019 QuickStart

Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: FAMILIES IN TRANSmON

Business Type: Trade Name

Expiration Date: 1/2/2023

Business Creation Date: 01/02/2018

Date of Formation in Jurisdiction: 01/02/2018

Principal Office Address: 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH, 03101,
USA

Business Email: NONE

Notification Email: NONE

{/onl[ne/Home/)^J| Back to Home (/online)

Business ID: 785244

Business Status: Active

Last Renewal Date: Not Available

Name in State of
N

Formation:
ot Available

Mailing Address: 122 Market Street Manchester, NH, 03101,
USA

' Phone#: NONE

Fiscal Year End Date: NONE

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code

OTHER / Hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe affordable housing
and supportive services

Pagt 1 of 1. rocords t to 1 of 1

NAICS Subcode

https://quick8tartsos.nh.gov/online/8usinesslnqulre/Bu8inesslnft)nnation7busln©sslD=611288 1/2



7/23/2019

Trade Name Information

QuickStart

Business Name Business ID Business Status

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

FTT/NHNH, INC Good Standing

(/online/Businesslnquire/TradeNamelnformation? Business

buslnessID=S701S)

Trademark Information

Trademark Number Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View Ail Other Addresses Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 -- Contact Us f/online/Home/ContactUS)
Version 2.1 C 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved.

httpsy/qulckstart.sosjih.90v/onllne^Busln©ssloquire/Busine8Slnrormatjon?businesslD-611288 2/2



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. Charia Stevens do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FIT/NHNH. Inc.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 22. 2019
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 22 day of July .2019

(Date Contract Signed)

4. Maureen Beaureoard
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborouoh

Is the duly elected

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signature«f the"Tfected Officer)

22 day of July ■ 2019

By Charia Stevens
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

itany Public/Justice of-the Pooog)-

Commission Expires:

SHERYL A. COOMBS
Not^ Public - New Hampshire

My Commission Expires March 7, 2023
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDOtN

DATE (MM/DOfYYYY)

5/23/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certlflcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endoisement(s).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morrill & Everett lr>c.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

{aTnp. e,.); (603) 225-6611 fwc. np):(603) 225-7935
Smkss:

INSURERfS) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Phlladelohia Insurance Comoanv 23850

INSURED

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
122 Market St

Manchester. NH 03101

INSURER B
OranHt SUI* H**lth C*r« S Human S«rvle«a Sail InturM Oroup

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

msR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INAO

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER
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,  3,000,000
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OTHER:
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,  3,000,000

s

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

PHPK1923501 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT ,  1,000,000
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IT08
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BODILY INJURY fParoaraonI s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

a1?I^8 ONLY
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»

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB
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CLAIMS-MADE PHUB6S97S2 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  5,000,000

AOOREOATE s

DED 1 X 1 RETENTION S 6 s  6,000,000

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UA8UJTY ^ ,
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE fTi l
QFF1CERWEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory in NH) ' '
If yaa, daaerfba undar
oisCRIPTlON OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A

HCHS20190000102 2/1/2019 2/1/2020

1 PER 1 OTH-
1 STATUTE 1 ER

E.L EACH ACaOENT
,  1,000,000

F I OfSFASF . FA FMPLOYCF
,  1,000,000

F.l. DfSFASF.. POUCY LIMIT
.  1,000,000

A

8

Professional Llab

Worker's Compensatio

PHPK1923495

HCHS20190000102

1/1/2019

2/1/2019

1/1/2020

2/1/2020

See Below

Excess 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AddtOenal RamafLa Schaduta, may ba atlaehad If mom apaca la raqulrad)
Professional Liability $1,000,000 Each lncldent/$3,000.00d Aggregate

Professional Liability $1,000,000 Each lncldent/$3,000,000 Aggregate.

State of NH, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

p.

ACORD 25 (2015/03) ® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All righto reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Our Mission

The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and
supportive services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-
sufficiency and respect.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH. Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2018 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2018, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Giastonbury, CT • Charleston, WV • Phoenix, A2
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2017 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 30, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018 the Organization adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Presentation of
Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

f  ̂

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 18, 2019



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Asset held for sale

iProperty and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Line of credit

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion, net of unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling Interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

1,598,033 $ 1.062,497
- 96,383

52,211 38,380
786,343 451,664

80,007 33,229
35,613 -

48.110 43.097

2,600,317 1,725,250

338,578 292,264
718,154 722,130

1,336,584 -

1,000 1,000
429,779 -

28,530,819 26,210,337
3,605.450 2,090,031
198.473 50.000

i  37.757.154 $ 31.091.012

1,116,180 $ 216,147
249.907 220,828
348,095 217,676

- 96,383

35,613 -

145,000 -

82.475 49.504

1,977,270 800,538

13.604.017 11.264.521

15.581.287 12.065.059

17,744,537 14,563,053
3.243.694 3.565.478

20,988,231 18,128,531

1.187.636 897.422

22.175.867 19.025.953

37.757.154 $ 31.091.012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended Decemtwr 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

R«v«nM tnd wp^
FM«rsl, Mi* and oltw grani luppott

feieenM, oM of vacanci**

Thrift (tor* (Mi

Ruble (upport
Tu cr*dlt r*v*f>u*
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0*v*lep*f f**(
VISTA program ravartu*
Urtraafttad (loa*) gain en InvaMmanii
(LOM) gain on ditpoaal of aiaaU
Maraii kicoma

'Irwkind dorwtlon*
liiraiuuari ktcoma

Forgtvanaa* ofdaM
Madlcdd rahnburaamanu

Otharlneom*

Nat aiiat* raiaaiad from radficUot)*

Teial ravatwa and luppott

EJ9*r<*a(
Program aeiMiai

Houdng
Thrift (lora

Total program adlvtlas
Fundraldng
Managamam and gartarai

Total *«*tt(*i

(Oafldaney) axcaaa ofravarM and (tepdd ovar
ar^onaaa

Cratva and contruunrta lor eapM prolacts
Nat aaaau rMaaod lor capid preiacls
ERaei el eonsetMatlon of afHata

Chang* in r>al auali

Chartga in nal aaaata aitrlbuiaM* to neneontroang intaraii in
(ubaldlanaa

Chang* In nai aaaata aftar raelaaaMeailon of portion
attnbuUUa to noncontroMng MaraU

Nat aaaau, baglmlngofyaar

Nat aaaata, arid of yaat

WKhoul Donor WKhou Donor
Raatrteiien*. RoiUlctMna - Total

CorUoSng NoricorKroerig WUieui Donor WBi Donor Total Total

intertat Inlaraal Raatrletlona Raatriellona 2016 2017

4,60t,300 S 1  4.601.300 I 513,654 t 1.115.164 $ 3.212.747

2,021.465 2.021,465 2,021.466 1.641,064

eie,s«s 616,565 616,665 665.756

6S5,«90 655,630 668,630 439.127

60,000 60,000 60,000 60.000

526,610 526,910 826,910 197.191

66,463 66,463 66,463

•3,734 93,734 •3.734 125.742

(166,646) (168,648) (166,946) 1.270

(10,115) (10,115) (10,115) 5.133

36,634 36,634 36,634 31.519

14,429 14,429 14,421 61.546

99,763 •9,763 n,763

131,267 131,267 131,267 131.267

521,957 521,957 521,957 411.535

279,420 279,420 279,420 •1.956

292.925 292.925 f292.925)

10 043 719 10.043.719 220.929 10 264.641 7 318 657

6,390,926 •.390.926 6.190,126 6,299.553

666 374 686.374 666.374 681 291

9.077,300 9.077,300 9,077,300 6.980.644

1.131,941 1.131,941 1,131,941 416.466

897.234 697.234 697 234 539 603

11 106 475 11.106.475 11 106 476 7 939 133

(1.062.756) (1.062.756) 220.929 (641427) (623.276)

270.657 270,657 299,933 560,790 1.536.770

359.612 359,612 (359,612) .

3.291.787 3 291 767 139.164 3.4M.IS1

2,659.700 2,659.700 290,214 3,149,914 •15,494

321.764 1321.764) .

3,161.464 (321.764) 2,659,700 290,214 3,149,914 915.494

14 563 053 3 M5 476 16 126 531 697.422 1t.03S.9S3 18,110,459

17 744 537 S  70 966 231 S 19 025 953

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Program Activities

Housing Thrift Store Fundraisino

Management
and General

2018

Total

2017

Total

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

$ 3.492.775

400,781

316,195

24,951

518,402

54,002
$  355,442 $ 4,682,814 $ 3,168,366

37,770 517,504 349,575

Payroll taxes 262 810 24.440 39.746 26.593 353.589 234.204

Total salaries and

benefits 4,156,366 365,586 612,150 419,805 5,553,907 3,752,145

ler expenses

Advertising 15,018 25,068 - 18,946 59,032 36,236
Application and permit fees 1,620 - - - 1,620 2,015

Bad debts 28,100 - - - 28,100 26,124

Bank charges 573 8,847 - 11,445 20,865 17,875
Consultants 19,504 2,847 4,647 2,483 29.481 78,138

Depreciation 933,878 11,093 115,347 51,612 1,111,930 1,003,294

Events 3,550 2,814 160,685 - 167,049 61,181

General insurance 124,791 3,523 14,318 13,248 155,880 153,904

Grant expense 59,149 - - - 59,149 .

Interest expense 228,999 714 - - 229,713 188,473

Management fees 6,622 - - - 6,622 6,487

Meals and entertainment 4.740 179 656 547 6,122 5,181

Membership dues 10,790 - 1,741 3,458 15,989 10,022

Merger expenses - - - 137,747 137,747 1,000

Office supplies 282,398 6,460 43,158 38,139 370,155 134,490

Participant expenses 116,915 45 379 379 117,718 99,219

Postage 7,324 9 4,274 1,758 13,365 7,804

Printing 16,755 2,745 19,129 2,088 40,717 24,577

Professional fees 53,906 3,500 - 112,417 169,823 182,974

Related entity expense (159,398) 159,398 - . - -

Rental subsidies 332,270 . . - 332,270 298,272

Repairs and maintenance 370,123 34,325 42,145 16,169 462,762 409,132

Shelter expense 166,891 - - - 166,891 -

Staff development 31,588 98 4,008 3,340 39,034 23,136

Taxes 313,613 2,307 - - 315,920 328,184

Technology support 190,132 2,231 28,782 23,666 244,811 65,457

Telephone 88,992 5,056 10,095 8,778 112,921 90,917

Travel 40,914 3,845 5,191 4,222 54,172 44,486

Utilities 512,260 31,461 52,007 17,767 613,495 444,062

VISTA program 320,859 - - - 320,859 359,804

Workers' compensation 111.684 14.223 13.229 9.220 148.356 84.544

Total expenses S 8.390.926 S 686.374 $ 1.131.941 $ 897.234 $11,106,475 $ 7.939.133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consolidated affiliate

of $326,551

Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments of advances to related parties
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from reserve accounts
Proceeds from sale of investments

Investment in development in process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Net borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller

Property and equipment transferred from development in process

2018 2017

i  3,149,914 $ 915.494

1,125,127 1.016.491

(560,790) (1.538.770)

(3,104,400) .

(131,267) (131,267)
168,848 (1.270)
10,115 (5.133)

42,130 (16.731)
(334,679) (128.248)
(39,301) 2,609

(119,810) (302)

(21,258) 51,841
84,806 9.744
35,613 -

32.971 1.398

338.019 175.856

(35,613) 8.208
(40,338) 57,348
275,024 4,264

(1,515,419) (1,931,040)
- 5,133

(2.476.1091 (162.691)

(3.792.4551 (2.018.778)

560,790 1,538,770
145,000 -

3,507,201 772,009
(223.0191 (203.120)

3.989.972 2.107.659

535,536 264,737

1.062.497 797.760

1.598.033 $ 1.062.497

60.615

$  2.222.138

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street. Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Street, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard I and Millyard
II), Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), and Lehner Street in Wolfeboro,
New Hampshire (Hope House).

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester. New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2018, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close the Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Bicentennial Families Concord,
Inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big
Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire
corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole general partners in the Limited
Partnerships, whereby Bicentennial Families is a general partner of Bicentennial, Family Mill is a
general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy".

-7-



FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Effective January 1, 2018, FIT and New Horizons for New Hampshire, Inc. (NHNH) merged to create
an integrated system of care that will provide an increased supply of affordable housing for those most
in need, sustain positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence based practices proven to
meet identified needs and goals, identify areas for systemic and programmatic improvements through
the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure success, and provide an integrated
system of care that will prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become
homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with children. The merger resulted in a
contribution of net assets of $3,430,951 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63,436
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33,676
Investments 1,780,456

Property and equipment, net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95,950)
Notes payable (73.417)

Fair value of net assets acquired $^^430^95^

The merger resulted in a contribution because the fair value of the identifiable assets exceeds the fair
value of the liabilities assumed and no consideration was transferred from NHNH.

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association) and is the majority owner in the Association. The Association was established for the
purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester,
New Hampshire.

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation,
the financial statements of each of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership Interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits, MEH, Outfitters, the Association, and
NHCEH. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information

was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases those net asset
classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted deposits are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for
operating costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for
rental properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these sen/ices has not been included In the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
approximately $780,000 and $1,060,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation, amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
estimated utilization of support services by functional cost centers.
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal Income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the Impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes, however, the Internal Revenue Service is
prepared to regard any profits realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions
of members' contributions towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable
income of the Association or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

Recentiv Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2016, Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not^for-Profit Entities (Topic 958),
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The new ASU marks
the completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for profit financial
reporting. Under the new ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The previous three
category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The guidance for classifying deficiencies in endowment funds and on accounting for
the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property, plant, and equipment has also been
simplified and clarified. New disclosures highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make
otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial requirements. The ASU also
imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses. The ASU is effective for the
Organization for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has working capital of $1,108,040 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 54.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on mortgage notes payable, and capital
acquisitions not funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2018 2017

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,598,033 $ 1,062,497
Accounts receivable 52,211 38,380
Grants and contributions receivable 788,343 451,664
Investments 1.336.584

Total financial assets 3,773,171 1,552,541

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds f1.187.S36t (897.422^

Financial assets available at year end for
current use S 2.585.535 $ 655.119

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs.

The Organization has replacement reserves and cash designated reserves for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire,Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) and only available
when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash designated reserves
for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year and are not
reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a t^alanced budget
while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2018 2017

Land $ 3,646,597 $ 3.112,,699

Land improvements 602,600 602,,600

Buildings and improvements 34,123,495 30.283,,393

Furniture and fixtures 731,590 610,,143

Equipment 558,032 217,,695

Vehicles 347,711 300,,367

Construction in progress 12.229 -

40,022,254 35.126,,897

Less: accumulated depreciation 11.491.435 8,916,,560

Property and equipment, net $ 28.530.819 $ 26,210,,337

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization held $22,102,918 and $18,427,778,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements, net of accumulated
depreciation, for the purpose of leasing to individuals.

4. Development in Process

Development in process consists of costs related to the following facilities:

Familv Willows Recovery Housing Program

In response to the rising rates of opioid and other substance use issues throughout Manchester,
New Hampshire and the State of New Hampshire, FIT and Housing Benefits are assisting in the
establishment of The Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center, a large-scale facility to curb
the tide of substance misuse.

The plan for establishment of this facility includes the following provisions: Each of the four floors
of the Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center will provide different substance use disorder
treatments or services to those at varying stages of recovery. Agencies using the facility will
coordinate services to ensure that clients who seek services are provided with integrated and
comprehensive care. One of the key programs in the facility will be Housing Benefit's Family
Willows Recovery Housing Program (the Project) on the 2"*^ and 3"" floors. This program will
provide 19 units of sober, recovery housing, and can accommodated an estimated 40-50 women
and their children on an annual basis. Residents in the Project will have access to case
management, continued outpatient treatment, self-help groups, employment workshops, and
social events. Construction began in December 2017 and is anticipated to be completed in the first
quarter of 2019. Funding for the Project has been secured from the City of Manchester, NHHFA,
Franklin Savings Bank, the Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and private
foundations.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Hope House

In December 2017, FIT and Housing Benefits began renovations on Hope House. Hope House,
modeled after FIT'S Family Place Resource Center and Shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire, is
a comprehensive resource for families experiencing homelessness. In addition to emergency
housing, Hope House provides services including comprehensive intake, assessment and referrals
designed to direct families to the appropriate homeless and housing resources in the community,
referrals to medical care for parents and children, and other essential resources. Hope House
houses 7 families and their children each night, with an estimated 30 adults and 90 children
annually. During 2018, the renovations at Hope House were completed and facility was placed into
sen/ice. Funding for Hope House was obtained with lending from NHHFA, as well as private
contributions.

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $350,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4% (5.5% at December 31, 2018). There was no outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding balance was $145,000.

6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2018 2017

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 53,707 $ 57,243

A note payable to NHHFA. The note Is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester. New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $990, including interest at 4.55%. The loan is collateralized
by real estate on Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire
and is due and payable in full in February 2019. The
Organization is In the process of refinancing this mortgage loan
payable. 113,185 118,282
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A mortgage loan payable to ID Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 59,226 69,980

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 217,397 226,616

A mortgage note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA, collateralized
by real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 141,684 147,919

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2034. This is nonrecourse. 85,018 85,018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is nonrecourse
and is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable. 336,9i55 336,955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to Merrimack
County, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. The note is due and payable in full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard II to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financirig instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the property or in
May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse. 449,877 449,877

A mortgage note payable by Millyard II to NHHFA, collateralized by
real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of $1,729
include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The final
installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 220,274 233,053
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A note payable by Millyard II to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. A payment of interest shall be made annually no
later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of the net cash
flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt Coverage Ratio,
as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal payments shall be
made no later than August 1 in an amount that will result in a
1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid amounts are due
and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This note is
nonrecourse. 226,725 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard II to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by real estate. Payment of principal is due and payable on
December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 45,430 57,837

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30.2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27. 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 432,921 450,124

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester. New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1. 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 543,384 550,878

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note Is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 90,908 99,999

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 3.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree. 263,103 275,398

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,775 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021. 69,285 95,775

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until '
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 413,575 413,575

A privately-financed mortgage note collateralized by property
located at South Main Street in Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The note is payable in full in September
2031. 332,432 348,981

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collaterallzed by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the

maturity date in June 2041. 168,022 168,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collaterallzed by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2018 and 2017, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 984,497 1,115,764

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,672 216,672

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collaterallzed
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. As costs are
incurred Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2015. The note is due In full by
October 1,2045. 582,808 582,808

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collaterallzed by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $1,921 include principal and interest at 3.41%. The note is
due in full by April 2019. The Organization is in the process of
refinancing this mortgage loan payable. 388,731 398,203

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is
collaterallzed by the related vehicle. 9,892 15,239
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A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due in November 2020 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 13,979 22,624

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 include principal and
interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040. 183,916 188,387

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,270 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 382,018 390,000

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal and interest are due over a 30
year period starting September 2018 at 4.90% interest. 770,113 270,855

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments in amounts equal to 25% of
surplus cash. The note is due in full by November 1, 2047. 692,891 113,819

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.90% annual
interest rate. The loan is due and payable in March 2022. 40,633 51,965

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1,2047. 1,133,816
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(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, coliateraiized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street. 3rd Floor. The note is funded the the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 495,225

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
coliateraiized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The note is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at Angle's Shelter. If the
renovation project is approved, NHHFA is expected to be the
lead lender on renovations. If the renovation project is not
approved NHHFA will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest
bearing note payable is due at the time of closing on the
construction loan. 13,879

A noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program through the Affordable
Housing Trust Funds, coliateraiized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street. Annual payments of $6,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1, 2010. The note is due in full
by October 1, 2019. 6,000 -

A note payable to CDFA, coliateraiized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2.0% will be
required until December 2021. 46.767

14,760,449 11,534,117

Less current portion
Less unamortized deferred costs

1,116,180
40.252

216,147

53.449

S 13.604.017 $11,264,521
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Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures Is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2019 $ 1,116.180
2020 218,543
2021 210,011
2022 186,655

2023 504,951
Thereafter 12.524.109

$14.760.449

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,197, was
$229,713 and $188,473 in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Cash paid for interest approximates
interest expense.

7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2018 2017

Specific purpose
The Family Place - services $  53,540 $ -

Scholarships 8,264 10,264

VISTA program 48,118 57,351
Direct care for clients 95,410 109,749

Community Gardens 10,333 -

Hope House 131,440 241,761
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program 264,238 299,797
NHNH merger 345,003 98,500
Substance use disorder services 170,677 -

NHNH programs 60.613 -

1,187,636 817,422

Passage of time
Grant receivable - time restricted : 80.000

$  1.187.636 S 897.422
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Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2018 2017

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
The Family Place - services $ - $ 41,866

Scholarships 3,500 2,500
VISTA program 57,325 58,093

Housing programs - 10,000
Direct care for clients 84,324 45,070
Community Gardens - 42,843
Hope House 216,016 -

Family Willows Recovery Housing
Program 143,796 42,972

NHNH merger 96,706 -

Substance use disorder services 45,324 2,000
NHNH programs 5.746 _

$ 652.737 $ 245.344

8. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $63,053 and $49,814 during the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

10. Housing Action New Hampshire

In 2011, the Organization entered into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement with Housing Action New
Hampshire (HANH), an unincorporated association. Authority to manage the programmatic
activities of HANH is vested solely in HANH. In accordance with the agreement, the Organization
was to maintain the books and financial records for HANH in accordance with U.S. GAAP. HANH

funds were presented in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial position as funds
held as fiscal agent. Effective January 1, 2018, the Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement terminated and
the Organization no longer maintains the books and financial records for HANH.
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11. Noncontrollino Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows;

Limited Partner Property 2018 2017

New Hampshire Housing
Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial $ 105,749 $ 213,660

JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial 213,791 213,791
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 970,818 1,135,777
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 1.953.316 2.002.230

$  3.243.694 $ 3.565.478

12. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 18, 2019,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

Bicentennial

During 2018, Bicentennial reached the end of the initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. As a result. New Hampshire Housing Equity Fund, Inc. and JP Morgan Chase
(the limited partners) have decided to withdraw from Bicentennial and are expected to do so in the
first quarter of 2019. It is management's plan to have Housing Benefits assume the remaining
assets of Bicentennial. '

Outfitters

As a result of management's decision to close the OutFITter's Boutique located in Concord, New
Hampshire, the property was put up for sale and is reflected as an asset held for sale on the
consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2018. On February 25, 2019,
Outfitters sold the property for $830,000. CDFA, who granted tax credits to originally purchase the
property, has required Outfitters to restrict $43,340 of the proceds from the sale to be used for the
Outfitters thirft store located in Manchester, New Hampshire. Outfitters will recognize a gain on
sale of property in 2019.
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Antoinette Hills

In September, 2018, Housing Benefits signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Antoinette L.
Hill Apartments, Inc., an unrelated party, to purchase 23 units of housing located in Manchester,
New Hampshire for approximately $1,300,000 to be financed through NHHFA. The terms of the
long-term debt agreement with NHHFA require that the owner of the property must be a single
purpose entity. As a result, management has formed HB-AH, LLC, is a single member LLC, with
Housing Benefits as its sole member.
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Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Bizios Stevens, Co -Chairperson

Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group

McLane Middieton, Professional Association Esquire

Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartiey, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartiey Financial Advisor

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, At Large

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, At Large

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT& MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson

President, Anagnost Companies

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration

Board member since 2018

Rev. 7/16/2019 RS



AnnMarie French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy lr)stitute

Board member since 2018

Brian Hansen

Team Engir)eerir)g, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian MIkol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfield

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations

Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company

Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department

Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager

Board member since 2018

Rev. 7/16/2019 RS



Maureen Ann Beanregard

Professional Experience

November 1991 to Present: Families in Transition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH

03101.

1995-Present. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to state and federal agencies and public
relations.

• 2003to Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units permanent affordable
housing in Manchester.

• 2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition - Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and their children.

•  2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition's social entrepreneurship.
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Training Program.

•  1998 - 2001: Development of Millyard 11 Transitional Housing Program with 19
apartments and 1 interim unit for 3 families.

•  1995 - 1997: Development of Millyard I Transitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

•  1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 ©

(3)

1991- 1994 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
children.

•  1993 - 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.

•  1992 - 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.

•  1991 - 1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-March 1991: Child Protective Service Worker II for the Division for Children

and Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix East, Haverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources
(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group.

Education



Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies.

Professional Affiliations and Honors

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
Investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-profit
2004: The Walter J. Dunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year
2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.
2002: Great Bay Foundation: $150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social entrepreneurship, Family OutFITters.
2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channel - 9, 2003 Community Champions Award for
Homelessness for New Hampshire

2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to theU.S. Dept. ofHousing&
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: 1 of top 10 narratives in the country.
2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee

2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Trustee

2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia's Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness, member appointed
by Governor Benson

2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member
2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor

1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Committee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Stephanie Allain Savard, MSW, LICSW

Education:

• Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996.

•  Bachelor of Arts - Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992.
•  Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, 1992.

Licensure and Certification:

•  New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April, 2000 - Present.
•  Boston University Trauma Certificate Program, 2006.

•  Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional (C3P), 2000.

Awards & Honors:

•  New Futures Thomas Fox Memorial Treatment Scholarship - Recognized for Treatment Work in Substance Use
Field, 2013.

•  Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce "Leadership Greater Manchester Program," Class of 2011.
•  Union Leader and Business Industry Association "40 Under 40" Leaders of New Hampshire, Class of 2004.
•  NH Homeless Service Providers Award, NH Department of Health & Human Services, Office of Homeless &

Housing Services, 2003.

Professional Experience:
Chief Operating Officer, Families in Transition, Manchester, NH, December 1996 - Present.
•  Oversight of agency operations to ensure seamless systems, fiscal responsibility, quality control and best

practices across departments. Provide oversight of development and revision of, adherence to agency policy
and procedures.

•  Oversee and manage supportive services department with up to 25 staff providing housing (emergency,
transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to serve 200 homeless individual and
families. Supportive services encompass individual case management, therapy, psycho-educational
workshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

•  Collaborate with Board of Directors and Management Team in non-profit development and program growth.
Develop and provide clinical oversight of a specialized gender-specific intensive outpatient substance use
treatment program specializing in co-occurring disorders, with a focus on trauma histories. Program
recognized as the Treatment Provider of the Year by the NH Alcohol and Other Drug Providers Association,
2013.

•  Develop and provide clinical oversight of an innovative therapeutic pre-school program for children and
families who are homeless with strength-based and family-focused services.

•  Provide clinical and administrative supervision for clinical program managers. Oversee a 24-hour crisis line.
•  Collaborate with senior management staff in daily operations of Families in Transition, including financial

decisions, program and housing development and human resources. Assume responsibilities and decision-
making for agency in the absence of the President. Collaborate with President, Board of Directors and
management team on strategic planning and implementation for the agency.

•  Served on Families in Transition Board of Directors Programs Committee and the primary liaison to
Committee chair for agency.

Family Service Worker/Counselor, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester, NH, 1993 - 1996.
•  Provided support and treatment planning with families of children in judicial system. Conducted family

assessments and counseling during stay at short-term residential facility.
•  Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and normative culture techniques.
•  Managed all shifts; development and facilitation of summer activity program.



Clinical Social Worker Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA, 1995-1996.
• Assisted in providing treatment services to transitional living program provided within emergency housing

program for single adults.
• Completed assessments and provided individual and group therapy to adults who were homeless in early

recovery from substance use. Provided case management for substance use, HIV/AIDS and housing needs.

Clinical Social Worker Intern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-1995.
•  Provided case management, counseling and crisis intervention to people with chronic mental health

disorders.

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, Aug. 1992- Aug. 1993.
•  Developed and supervised volunteer program, assisted in agency fundraising and grant writing; designed

marketing materials; assisted in coordinating Board of Directors and chaired Board committees.

Professional Expertise and Trainer Experience:
•  Brazelton Touchpoints Community Trainer, New Hampshire's Brazelton Touchpoints Site with Families in

Transition, 2011 - present.

•  "Avoiding Third Degree Bums: A Professional First Aid Kit for Preventing Burnout" Conference Workshop,
New Hampshire Division of Children, Youth and Families State-wide Conference, 2014; State of NH Bureau of
Housing and Homelessness NH Homeless Provider Conference, 2013; Families in Transition Clinical
Department, 2011.

•  "Raising Voices: Strategies for Engaging Homeless & Formerly Homeless People in Local and National
Advocacy Efforts" Conference Workshop, Institute for Children, Poverty and Homelessness, Beyond Housing:
A National Conversation on Child Homelessness and Poverty Conference, NYC, 2014.

•  "Dealing with Difficult Conversations" Training, Families in Transition VISTA Program, 2011-2013;
Leadership Staff, 2012.

•  "Direct Service Training for Volunteers", Families in Transition, 2013.
•  "Understanding Homelessness & Poverty" Presentation, St. Anselm's College - Sociology Department, 2011

&2012.

•  "Ethics in Professional Practice" Presentation, Families in Transition, 2009.

•  "Relational-Cultural Model with the People Experiencing Homelessness" Conference Workshop, State of NH
Bureau of Housing and Homelessness - NH Homeless Providers Conference, 2002.

•  Confident public speaker and community collaborator through active participation in multiple community
groups, coalitions and associations.

Service in Professional Societies, Government and Local Organizations:
•  Appointed Member, NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and

Recovery, March 2010 - Present.
•  Chair and member, Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Treatment Taskforce, 2009 - Present.
•  Board of Directors Member, National Association of Social Workers -NH Chapter, 2004-2008

o Vice-president 2006 - 2008

o Executive Council Member at Large 2004-2005
o Member 1996-Present.

•  Member, Lazarus House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004-2008.
•  Board of Directors Member, NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 2000- 2002.

• Member, Manchester Continuum of Care, 2000-2007;
0 Chair-2000-2001;
o Community Awareness Committee Chair, 2003-2004 & 2006-2007.



Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utilize and expand the clinical and management skills have I attained from my
professional and academic trainii^ to secure a position in a nonprofit settk^.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE
Master — Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor September 2010- Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-Present

Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
■  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standir^ Program

Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006
■  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

EMPLOYMENT
Vice President, Clinical 8c Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20''*, 2017 — present

■  Receivership-Interim Executive Direaor of Serenity Place
■  Oversees all clinical and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Fforizons including

emergency shelter, transitional and permanent supportive housii^, Intensive Outpatient Services,
Outpatient services, Recovery lousing and programming.

• Quality of control of healthcare facilities licensure.
■  Oversight of fidelity of evidence based praaices and models.
■  Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best praaices across the agency.
■  Supervision of agency program managers and housing direaor.
■  Provide clinical supervisor for licensure and certifications.
■  Quality control of all billing policies and procedures.

Clinical Director

Families in Transition Sept 1", 2016- December 2017
■  Oversee and manage Sr. Housing Program Manner who supervises the supportive services department with up

to 25 staff providii^ housing (emergency, transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individud and families. Supportive services encompass individual case man^ement,
therapy, psycho-educational workshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

•  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager vsho supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct co-occurring
treatment to women only

•  Develop and staff Recovery Housing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
programming

■  Develop and oversight Open E)oors outpatient programming for all transitional housing programs of FIT
■  Ensure quality programming across Families in Transitions clinical department
■  Provide training within the organization and community on substance misuse in NH.
■  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Supportive Service
■  Oversight of billing components of all levels of Co-occurring treatment.

Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford Family Therapy

■  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpatient group practice



•  Utilize various evidence based practices CBTdDBT, and Seeking Safety skills to help clients meet their own
individual goals

■  GDnduct Drug and Alcohol assessments
•  Active participant in DWI Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals coming

from the Impaired Drivers Program
■  Participate in weekly supervision with other licensed clinicians part of the private group practice.

Clinical & Supportive Service Manager March 2016- August 31*',2016
Families In Transition

■  Man^e the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
■  Manage the day to day operations for the Ifeusing program of Families in Transition consisting of over 200

apartment units in New Hampshire.
•  Provide clinical and administrative supervision for a total of 14 staff for Families In Transition
■  Ensure compliance with budgetary and financial goals.
■  Maintain compliance with State, Federal, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance regulations.
■  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Qinical Programs.

Program Manager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Program September 2014-2016
Families In Transition

■  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program includir^ six staff members
•  Transitioned the program from grant funded to billing all commercial insurances
■  Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.
■  Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the FW Substance Use Treatment Program
■  Carried a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurring evidence base therapeutic interventions.
•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient treatment in a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 women.
•  Provided training and education to staff on clinical intervention and best practices in the group setting.

Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families In Transition

•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient Programii^ in a group setting daily for up to 12 clients
■  Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.
■  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition

•  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
■  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documentation in a timely manner
■  Helped implement new curriculum changes in the treatment programming

MSW Intern May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford Counseling - Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester
•  Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social assessments to

include di^nosis and substance use assessments
■  Provided psychotherapeutic intervention services to twenty-two individuals usii^ brief treatment and cognitive

behavioral interventions

•  Attended therapeutic workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment
planning

Case Manager June 2006- May 2010
Families In Transition

•  Provided in home case management services to 30 individuals and families to enhance housing stability among
the homeless population.

■  Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transition
•  Conducted program interviews for the community support program
■  Maintained all files with updated documentation, clear and concise progress notes and treatment plans
■  Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to participants of the program
•  Collaborated with community partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Associarion Board of Directors-Vice President of Treatment July 2014 to Present
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRESENTATIONS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Lke and Trauma in a Family System- Loon Mountain June 2015



Providers Association: Addressing Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 31«,2016 at
Wentworth Douglas Hospital in Dover, NH

REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

Education

Boston University, Tvncsboro, MA September 2006-Mav 2009
Masters of Social Work
Rivier College, Nashua, NH September 2004-MAy 2006
Bachelor of Arts in Human Development
•  Minor in Social Work

New HampshireTechnical Institute, Concord, NH September 2002- May 2004
Associates Degree in Early Childhood Education
Licenses

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in Massachusetts and New Hampshire
Experience
Psychotherapy associates of North Reading, North reading, MA July 2013- Present
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker

•  Provide individual and family counseling to children, adolescences, and adults
•  Provide service to adolescences during the tranisition into college and adulthood
•  Offer art and play therapy services to children ages 3-15 years old
•  Conduct psychotherapy assessments and formulate treatment plans

Families in Transition, Manchester, NH

Child and Family Therapist October 2016-Present
•  Provide in-home family therapy
•  Supporting families through substance use, trauma and homelessness
•  Facilitiate therapeutic play groups and parenting groups

Program Manager/ Child and Family Therapist October 2009- October 2012
•  Provide trauma-informed therapeutic services to homeless children and families
•  Manage the trauma-informed therapeutic preschool and afterschool program
•  Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educators whose responsibility levels vary
•  Complete psychosocial assessments, develop treatment plans, and DECA/BERS assessment tools
•  Provide individual therapy, family therapy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, group therapy and crisis intervention

Ellis Memorial, Boston, MA October 2012- May 2014
Clinical Supervisor
•  Oversee clinical services for children being offered in the agency, including supervision to clinical staffand interns
•  Provide therapeutic services to children and families enrolled in Ellis's educational programming
•  Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases with the Department of Children and Families
•  Offer in-house trainings and on-going support to early childhood providers
•  Create and implement behavior management strategies to ensure success for children within the programs

Moore Center Services Inc., Manchester, NH November 2008- October 2009
Case Manager, Children Services
•  Assist families with children diagnosed with developmental disabilities and participate in crisis intervention planning
•  Oversee and manage child budget to provide services through the In Home Support program
•  Attend children's individual education plan (lEP) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalf of children's

education

Easter Seals residential facility Co-Occurring Unit, Manchester, NH September 2008- May 2009
Master Level Clinical Intern

•  Participate in individual and group therapy with adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
•  Develop curriculum for group therapy
•  Involvement with drug court and the New Hampshire court system
•  Participated in training for Therapeutic Crisis Intervention

High Puin Elementary, Andover, MA September 2007 - May 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern

•  Led individual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques
•  Provided emotional and behavioral support to clients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, CAS and depression
•  Served as liaison between staff and families on mental health issues and child development

Trainings
•  Certified trainer in Suicide Prevention through NAMI (National Association of Mental Illness) 2010
•  Certified trainer of Dr. Brazelton Touchpoints child development model (Harvard University) 2011
•  Certified Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (Catholic Charities) March2014
•  Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help implement the Trauma-Informed

Early Education and Care Systems Breakthrough Collaborative. Created and implemented trauma-informed curriculum
training to early childhood educators. (Boston Public Health Commission, Boston MA) August 2013-September 2014



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maureen Beauregard President 153,699 0% -

Stephanie Savard COO 98,945 0% -

Meghan Shea VP of Clinical Services 85,000 50% 42,500

Kristen McGuigan Program Manager 63,654 100% 63,654



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioiier

Christmo M Tappan ■
Associate Commissioaer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFHCE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
j

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03801-3887
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

fax: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhfl.nh.gOT

June 19, 2018

F

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a renewal option
to the sole source agreement with Families in Transition, Vendor #157730-6001. 122 Market
St. Manchester, NH 03101, for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders, have incorne at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the
price limitation by $500,000 from $998,414 to $1,498,414 and by extending the contract
completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.100% Federal Funds

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 21. 2016 (Item #11) and amended on April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A) and again on June
21. 2017 (Item #20A).

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 in the following account with authority to
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, wfthout approval
from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: transitional ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY Class Title
Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017
502-

500891
Payments, to
Providers

45057500 $499,207 $0 $499,207

2018
502-

500891

Payments, to
Providers

45057500 $499,207 $0 $499,207

2019
502-

500891

Payments, to
Providers

45057500 $0 $500,000 $500,000

Total: $998,414 $500,000 $1,498,414



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
- and the Honorable Executive Coundi
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EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because the Contractor has been Identified as having
the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting
women while allowing their child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.

The purpose for this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing substance
use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound
services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders
and have income at or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk
of becoming homeless. The Department has substaritiai data that indicates a growing need
for residential and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who
have substance use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk "of becoming
homeless. Women with substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high
intensity residential treatment.

Utilization patterns and research have, shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women vyith children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use disorder could
result in separation from their children.

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program Is to provide a safety net for children
so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the
TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education.
The vendor will address needs .of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for
the children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with
the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger, community. The
services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate dependence on public
assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients'
substance use disorders.

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and Individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic blopsychosociai assessment of an Individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to;

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

• Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

• Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

• Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services



His Excellency, Govemor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Coundl
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The Department is satisfied with the service provided by this Contractor. The original
agreement established services for one (1) year, and included the option to renew contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding,
satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive,Council.
Amendment #1 exercised one (1) of the two (2) years of renewal. This request, If approved,
exercises the final year of renewal that is available in the contract.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder
treatment services they need.

Area Served: Greater Manchester area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDM93.558) U.S. Departrrient of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF : FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

jtfully submitted,Resp

tine I.Tappan
Associate Commissioner

ffrev A. Mey<

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services'Mission is tojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Sutistance Use Disorders

This 3rd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #3") dated this 19th of April 2018, Is by and between the State of
New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Families In Transition (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street Manchester, NH 03101 .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 21. 2016 (Item #11) as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A)
and on June 21, 2017 (Item ̂ ^OA), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractdr.have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3.
the State modify the scope of work and the payment- schedule of the contract and renew
contract services for up to two (2) additional years, upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and to extend the completion date
to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2019.

2. Form P-37, Genera! Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,498,414.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2. Subsection 2.11, Paragraph 2.11.4, to
read:

2.11.4 Ensure, If the performance of services involves the collection, transmission,
storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SLID) records, information,
or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider, that safeguards, including
consent and notices required by 42 CFR Part 2, are provided prior to any
disclosure of Part 2 information.

Families In Transition Amendment
SS.2017-0FA^2<)PEND-03 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

6. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3. SPY 2019 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Families In Transition Amendment W
SS-2017-OFA-02-OPEND-03 Rape 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Irtment of Health and>iuman Services

Date Christine M. Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Families in Transition.

May 18, 2018 ZYl^// j/OA
Nanrle; Maureen Beauregard VDate NanrleT Maureen Beauregard
Title: President

Acknowledgement:
State of New Hampshire County of Hiiisborough on May 18.2018 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

N^nJand Title of Notary Jx J
Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. / Notary Public

r Justice of

RUTH A. SYREk. Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16,2018

 the Peace (j

Famlllos in Transition Amendment M
SS-2017.0FA-02-OPEND-03 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivices
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE. OF>iFHE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

CalU'\\g
Name:

Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: . (date of meeting)

Femllles (n Transition

SS-2017-DFA-O2-OPEND-03
Amendment #3

Pege 4 of 4



Families in Transition

Open Doors Budget

SFY 2019

Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3

SFY 2019 Budget

VP of Clintca I Services 39,100
Program Manager 62,730

Therapist 52,280
Treatment Coordinator 19,000

Recovery Support Workers (24-7) 219,275
Benefits 74,014

Computers/Printers 2,600
Educational/client program supplies 2,500
i-ab ... 3,300
Office Supplies 1,200
Travel 1,000

Telephone 1,500
Insurance 1,500

Advertising 2,500

Staff Education/Trainings 6,000
Client Basic Needs - Rent ■ 5,000
Client Basic Needs - Clothes 1,000

Client Basic Needs-Food 3,500
Client Basic Needs - Bus Passes 1,000
Office Furniture 1,000

2,470.00

466,400 total salaries and benefits

500,000

Families In Transition

SS-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03

Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date: May 18.2018



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A, Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

•  1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident .
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware," or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.201 S ExtilbitK Contractor Initial^
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
PageiofS Dale May 18. 2018



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HiPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to ail its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.201d ExNbUK Contractor Inttla'
DHHS Infbfmallon

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security^RuIe, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as Rle Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifJed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Ust update04.04.2018 EjcWWIK ContractorInWels,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure, of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply vwth all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V4. Last update M.04.2018 ExKbitK Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.
6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certific^ion vyill Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping,

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 ExrtbilK ConlractorInitial
DHHS Infofmation

Security Requirements ^
Pao0 5of9 Date May 18, 2018



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sutKcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program, of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syistem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access t>eing au^orized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur'over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

StV4. Last up<Jat« 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initial;
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health'
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, arid'
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology..
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.govfdoit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Techrioiogy policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided In this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor leams of Its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this'
Contract to oniy those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that ali End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b., safeguard this information at ail times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

V4. Ust update 04.04.201 fi Exhibit K Contractor
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

s

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor.compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor teams of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and detennine risk-based responses to Inddents; and

V4. Ust update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initial
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

6. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, .timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh,gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. L8$t update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K
OHHS Infonnation
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JelTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Terry R. Smith
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03501^867
603-271-9474 1-800-86Z-334C Ext. 9474

FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: L-800-736-2964 www,dbhs.tih.gov

June 6, 2017

U

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Stratford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30. 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September
7, 2016 (ltem#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and v/ere subsequently amended on
April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor #
Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

New

Budget
Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism

615 Amherst St.

Nashua. NH 03063
166574-

8001
$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

Hope on Haven
Hill, Inc.

326 Rochester Hill Rd.

Rochester. NH 03867
275119-

8001
$462,119 $482,119 $964,238

Fartiities in

Transition

122 Market St.

Manchester. NH 03101
157730-

8001
$499,207 $499,207 ■ $998,414

Total: $1,481,326 $1,481,326 $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.
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in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes
of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing
them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The sen/ices
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosoclal assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
sen/ices are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

• Nurturing pareriting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching sen/ices

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendors. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the
contrary, no sen/ices shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these sen/ices has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.55B) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children .
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF; FAIN # 16NHTANF
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Families in Transition
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofrt company with a place of
business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 21, 2016 (#11) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Govemor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (item#5A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified:
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Govemor and
Executive council: and ,

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation without extending the
completion date of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties her^p .agree to
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $499,207 from
$499,207 to read: $998,414.

CMMHSnOOSU
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This amendment shall be effective upon the dale of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Servloes

Date Terry
Director

June 2. 2017

Date

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

anrfe: Maureen B^ui^ard ̂  /Na

Title: President

Acknov/ledgement:
Stale of New Hampshire County of Hillsborough on June 2.2017

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed at>ove, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

N^e and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYR£K, Not&ry Public
My CommJBston Expl/es October 16.2016

CM}HHSnQ0213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTQWEY GENERAL

Date Namel A
Title: '

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CA^0M<S/1(n2U
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissiuoer

Terry R. Smith
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 I-800-852-334S Ext. 9474

FAX: 603-271-1637 TDD Access: 1-600-735-2964 www.dbbs.nb.eov

February 23. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders: have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of tiecoming homeless in Stratford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval from July 1. 2017 through June 30. 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3. 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (Item #9), and September 21.
2016 (Item #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current

Budget

Greater Nashua Council on

Alcoholism

615 Amherst St.

Nashua, NH 03063

166574-B001 $500,000

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd.

Rochester, NH 03867
275119-B001 $482,119

Families in Transition 122 Market St.

Manchester, NH 03101

157730-B001 $499,207

Total: $1,481,326

u

Funds to support this request are available In the follovring account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUNIAN SVS,

HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326

Total: $1,481,326

EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost In
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been



His Excdiency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Page 2 or 3

identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need loyv or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder Issues are less likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could result in separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program b«ng funded by this contract Is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic

biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for sen/ice planning and treatment
across alt services and levels of care. Ail services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may include, txit are not limited to:

•  C^ommunication classes
•  Anger management classes'

•  Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes ,

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

•  Mindfulness. Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, t>ased upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendntent #f to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This Is! Amendment !o the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (haeinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this February I5th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Families in Transition (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on Sejjtember 21, 2016 (#11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agre>ement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30,2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Fonn P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
fiinds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CVOHHSnOOZIS
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date '

State of New Hampshire
Department oLHealth and Human Services

r
Terry Smith
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

February 22, 2017

Date

Acknowledgement:
State of New Hampshire

Narfie: Maureen Beauregard ^
Title: President

County of Hlllsborough on February 22. 2017
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Titlft of Notary or of tlsUco of th

ruth a. SYREK. Notary Public
My Commission Expims October 18.2016

e Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. / Notary Public

CMCHHS'100213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

U

Date dUName:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CMDHHSn00213
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JeCCrey A. Meyers
CommlssloDer

Terry R. Smitb
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3967
603-271-9474 1-900-852-3346 Ext 9474

FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbbs.nh.gov

August 24, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Families in Transition, (Vendor # 157730-8001). 122 Market Street,
Manchester, NH 03101 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services. These
services iriclude: residential and/or supportive housing, wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below the 185% Federal Poverty Level and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in
Stratford County in an amount not to exceed $499,207. This agreement will be effective upon
Governor and Executive Council through June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available In the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $499,207

Total: $499,207

EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one of three vendors statewide
that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment
services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the chiid(ren) to remain in the
mother's care. This is the third of three sole source contracts for these services. The
Governor and Executive Council approved one of the contracts on August 3, 2016 (Late Item
A). It Is anticipated that the second contract will appear on the September 7, 2016 Governor
and Executive Council meeting agenda.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
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treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to ̂substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concems that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funds were transferred in the 2017
budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing the State. Substance abuse is often a
root cause of homelessness. Families in Transition (FIT) is currently working on expanding
their services to better assist the growing need of families facing substance abuse and/or
housing matters. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program Is to provide a safety net for
children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory
purpose of the TANF program Is to promote the independence of needy families through work,
and education. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and
removing barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the
larger community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their Amides, while addressing participants'
substance use disorders.

This agreement includes language that allows the Department to renew services for up
to two (2) years upon satisfactory provision of services, continu^ funding and Governor and
Executive Council approval.

The veridor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across ail services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality, and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established ■24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five and their
newboms for up to one year postpartum.



Hsr Excslleney, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder
treatment services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFD/y*93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by: —
layer

^missioner

The Department ofHeaJtb and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venion S/8/1S)
Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

PisordCTS f SS-2Q17-DFA-01 -QDend-031

Notice: This agreement and all of Its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address '
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Families in Transition

1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641.9441X251

1.6 Account Number
05-95.45-45001().8146

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2017

1.8 Price Limitation

1499,207

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement; State of NH .County of Hillsborough

On 8-15-16 , before the undersigned ofTlcer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11. and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated In block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature ofNotary Public or Justice of the Peace

^  / J A RUTH A SYREK. Notary PublicMyCommisstonExpiTosOctoberl6.2O10

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Jffoicc of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst Notary Public
1.14 State Agency SlRnature

Da.c;

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Pl'ltlJi OJXuJ

1.16 Approval by the WH. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On: '

1.17 Approval ̂ y the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By. ,;LAA/\ W/c.
1.18 Approval by the Governor ari^xecutive Council (inapplicable) ' f i

By. U ^ On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency idcntijfied in block 1.1 C'State"), engages
contractor identined in block 1.3 t"Contractor")to perfonn,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHtBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(*^ervlccs*').

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties
hcreunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Ayeement shall become cfTeclivc on the dke the
Agreement is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block
l.U("EffectivcDatc").
3 J If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
conlraiy, all obligations ofthe State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such lermiration. The Swtc
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are Identified and more particularly described in
E3Q1IBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
cxpertscs, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contmctor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitt^ by Nil. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In coruieclion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal^ state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. Tlu's may Include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright la_ws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
afFirTTUtive action to prevent such discrimination.
6J If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies ofthe
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.FR. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implemertt these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contranor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perfonn the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved In the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting ORicer's decision shall be final for the State.

B. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1 J failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or Icsscrspecification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, cfrcctivc two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.23 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Stale sufiers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONnDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1. As used In this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,,
ail whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon ^
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
93 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described In the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers* corrqrensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend.
Indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from aitd against any and ̂ 1 losses suffered by the
State, its oHIcers and employees, and any arvl ail claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted agairist the State, its ofilcers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Nolwlchstandlrig the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign Immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of b^ily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 Special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endors^ents approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the Nii Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date 8-15-16



14,3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccilificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceTtificale(s) of
insurance (brail renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cenificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
1 S.l By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of H.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation
J5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuit to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are '
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on (he part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OHlce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXKIBIT C are incorporated herein
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthc provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homoiessness Provention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent wttK the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
Include;

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an Individual family
unless the parent is employed In which case services can be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement. Including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health Insurance.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

1.4. The Contractor shall Keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
In Section 1.3.

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or Increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with the development of program processes, service provision, and
overall program outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DFA to ensure
desired program benchmarks are achieved timely .

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

FamOes In Transftion ^ExhbltA Contractor Initials
SS-2017-DFA^)1-OPENW>3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS • Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.B.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, Including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to Initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall comply wHh the Department's Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but Is not limited to:

1.10.1.1.Screening

1.10.1.2. Feed determination

1.1011.3. Admission

1.10.1.4. Billing

1.10.1.5. Disenroilment

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Er^ure alt encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall er^ure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that Include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services through
referrals to bcal support sen/ices.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.3. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.4. Access to onsite age developmentally appropriate childcare during treatment
and/or age developmentally appropriate childcare when needed.

2.1.5. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.6. Wraparound services.

2.1.7. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist wlUi reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation In the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that Includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women In working to end
their dependence on public assistance: secure pregnant and parenting women's

Families in TrafwHIan ExWWt A Contractor Initials iyw/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS -> Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women's
substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may Include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas. >

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.

2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.
/

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Ciinicai evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses t>ased off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Cliriical Evaluation Is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed In accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addictlon-

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs t>ased upon the
completed clinica! evaluation. Counseling-Compelencles/SMAI 5-4171. This may
Include, but Is not timlted to:

2.6.1. Irvhouse, on-sile, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) reslderitial
treatment sen/ices in a facility licensed, or in the process of l)eing licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing/may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing. Funding for
Supportive Housing services shall be limited to four (4) months based of
TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

F#miO«a in TranslUon Exhibit A Conliactof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain In their homes while receiving scheduled onslte SUD
treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her chi]d(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-goir>g basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from sen/ices, which Include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. aothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit t>oth women and their children into treatment sen/ices, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed Infomiation on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrcklds.Org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.0rg/content/pediatrics/l 28/5/e1341 .full.pdf

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through amangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-slte facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.9. The Contractor shair provide Interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may Include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Dally calls to the client if an emergent need arises, to assess and
respond..

Famfllw h Trantftton ExNbllA CortractorlnfUals im/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and'Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV. Hepatitis C (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (IB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services. If necessary.

2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that Includes, but Is not limited to:

2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.

2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.

2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.

2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or Interim services.

2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation In stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such' as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLlne; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as grounds for discharging clients from
services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shaQ:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever Is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and Interventions are written In
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans Include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. Apian for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall Include but Is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

FamOtosin Transition Exhibit A Contractor initialsl
SS-2017-DFA^1-OPEND^3 ■

Papa 5 of 9 Data B"15-16



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homeiessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan'speclfic services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, vyhich may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicatd, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.8amhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criter)a/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as. but not limited to. job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical arxJ tiehavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice and
must be pursuant with Chapter He-P 600 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules.
Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation as well as with

ASAM guidelines around intensive Outpatient Programs referenced In level 2.1
which can be accessed at http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria.
These shall be applicable staffing for this contractthat are referenced in this rule and
should include, but are not limited to:

Families in Transition . Exhibit A ■ Contractorlnifials
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OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
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Exhibit A

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
of Mental Health Licensed Clinician.

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical

Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certificatiori as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One half time advance registered nurse on staff or by referral

2.14.6. One (1) full-time Individual with experience In child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) half time director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist with experience In data collection, surveillance, and evaluation of
social determinants of health and other public health and community health
indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure In-service training Is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all cjients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care
Is maintained In a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date onthefollowing:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee Injuries

2.17.2.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.3. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring aij staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that Includes, but Is not limited to:

FamiUos In Transilicn ErfiibitA Cofitradortnitiala
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2.17.4.1. Adult and infant CPR.

2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxons.

2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.4.4. Universal precautions

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustalnably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible ser^ces.

2.18.3. Seek alternate.sources of funding for non>billable services from sources
Including but not limited to

2.18.3.1. Grants from private trusts and foundations

2.18.3.2. Individual and corporate donations

2.18.3.3. Event fundraislng

2.18.3.4. Private funding raised through the growth of FITs two social
entrepreneurial business ventures

2.19. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, If the Contractor Is found out of compliance v/lth any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified In the contract.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified In the corrective action
plan described In Section 2.19, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that Include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative Identifying barriers experiericed when providing services In
the prevbus month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified In Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks
r

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor attempt to contact a minimum of 95% of the Individuals on the
waiting list described in Section 2.9.3 are at least one time per month.

FsminesinTranslUon Exhibit A Contrsctor Ir^is
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Exhibit A

4.3. The contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled In program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care for their needs.

4.4. The contract shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite employment
programming to increase in financial stability and reduce dependence of public
assistance.

4.5. The contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three*
receive initial assessments to Inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this' contract are available to a minimum of 50 families in the

Manchester. New Hampshire region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities in
Section 2.4 to the Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract
effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from the
contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices descrit)ed in Sections, 2.8, 2.17.2.4 and
2.17.4.3 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9 to the
Department once every two months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures In Section 2.17.2 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development cum'culum used in trainings
described in Section 2.17.4 to the Department no later than 60 days from the
contract effective date.

FamDlos In Transition ExNbit A Contractor Initiab
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Slate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget In Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. CFDA #93.550, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurr^ In the prior month. The State
shall make paj^ent to the Contractor ̂ Ihln thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this /^reemenL

3.2.The Invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Heal^ and Human Services
129 Reasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

A. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions. Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld. In whole or In part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed In accordance the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capadty at
no cttai^e to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 10 of the Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the furtds within the budget In Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made vrithout obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such ellglbiiity determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eliglbiiity determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include aU
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared meligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ail applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a feir
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTtcials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notvrithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other documenL contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for cc^s Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Indivlduai is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure.the quallty'of such service, or at a
rate vriiich exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party

.  funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such r^es charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisions Contractor Initials.
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to lie ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAIhfTENANCE. RETENTtON. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
pr^erly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the prowsion of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department reguiations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit Contractor shall submit an annual qudlt to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Slates, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental O^anizatfons,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated represerrtalives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to

\  the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the reciplenL his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fisca! and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports; Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within (30) days after the end of the term
of (his Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the pnce llrhitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS vrill retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such ̂ Ility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Offce for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of S500.0Q0 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide.an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to sutimlt or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/certpdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
foliowir>g shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whjstleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
arid remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the sut>contractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are sut^ect to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

' When the Contractor delegates a functbn to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the followng:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies actiNrities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
peiformance is not adequate.

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

EihibU C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable arwJ reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Inltiats
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

(

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Condltiorta! Nature of Agreement, Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part.

. under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modiRcation of appropriated or available furxls, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accountfs) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agrwment . •

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for seivices under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of (he Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of serwces in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Rovisiora to Standard Provisions Contractor InitlBta
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING DRUG.FREE WORKPLACE REQUfREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certiftcation to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
ea^ grant during the federal tiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors uslr^g this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Senrices
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

/

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy oif the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted emptoyees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNUt D - CertMcation regarding Drug Free Contractor Inttiab
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implemenladon of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the perfonnance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: Families In Transition

AuglS. 2016
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard ^

President

ExNbit D - Certiflcatioo regarding Drug Free Contractor IniUals
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101*121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on L(Abying. end
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Se^onsl.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertiHcation:

US DEPARTMEhTT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - COhfTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Chlld Support Enforcement Program under Title IV*D
*Soclal Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Sen/ices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her krtowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specHfic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection ̂ h this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menb'on sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-redpients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

AugIS, 2016 ] I
Date Nanre: Maureen Beaur^a

President

jregard U

ExTabit E - Certification Reganling Lobbying Contractor IniSala.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSiON
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provi^ns of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to pro\4de the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services',(DHHS)
determination whether to eriter into this transaction. However, failure of tfte prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of feet upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knovwngly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Fedefel Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become error>eous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred,' 'suspended,' 'ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not kno^ngly enter into any iov^r tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titied 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, vrithout modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not deterred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by wtuch it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good feith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - CertlflcaOon Rogarting Oebannent, Suspension Contractor IrUtials t iv/
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infonfnation of a participant b not required to exceed that which b normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the F^eral government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
conr>ection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or dviUy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant b unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant b unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospect've participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include thb clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellglbility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016

Date 'NaSie: Maureen Sieauregar
Title: President
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor iderrtifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identifred In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiTtcalion:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In emplo^ent practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basts of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by'
reference, the civi) righ^ obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Reh^ilitatlon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from.discriminating on the basis of disabirtty, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basts of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
t>asis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizatbns;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment

EvNbtlG
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The CofTtractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Families In Transition

Aug 15.2016

^3m3:'""Maureen Beauregaf
President

Name: Maureen Beaureqara
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through St^e or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
•law does not apply to children's senrices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Sectron 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Corrtractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. 8y signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Narhe; Families in Transition

Narfie^^ Maureen^eiureg^
Title: President

ExMbil H - Certification Regarding Contnctor Iniiials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEf^Ef4T

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" In section 164.402 of Tide 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TttleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person v/ho qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

k. 'Protected Health information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^
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Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected HeaHh Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wA\ be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and.
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExNbitl Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HiPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same.
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, v^o will be receiving P/tl

3/2014 Exhibill Contractor NOals.
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pursuant to Ihis Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates wtto shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity. -
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices aii
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shail provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vwitten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonA>ard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^

3^2014 BtNblU Controclof Inifltls
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use'or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Ent'rty shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

r .. .

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowiedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe spedfied by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(5) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement*shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Contractor Initials
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SeareQaticn. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of ̂ e
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Families in Transition

The State Name of the Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized'Representative

Maureen Beauregard

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of Authorized Representative

President
Title of Authorized Representative

August 15. 2016
Date

3Q014 Etfifbin
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountatxlity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individuat
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Ideritifler of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top Five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part.l70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15. 2016 I | P/y/yvz/yOv//
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard

President
Title:

regarc

cu/Dm&rtton) Page lot 2
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entity Is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the Hve most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:.

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount: _

Amount:

ojotoftiona
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 4"' Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326
Rochester Hill Road Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 3, 2016 (Late Item #A) as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A); June 21, 2017 (Item #20A):
and June 20, 2018 (Item # 21), the Contractor agreed to perfomi certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend-the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,964,238.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B - Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #4, SFY20 Budget.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be retroactively effective to June 30, 2019 upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox
Director

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

Date Raniek j
Title:^-\'Vfv»A

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of ■ County of on . before the
undersigned officeV, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

ofigna lie or Justice of the Peace

- ̂ mnu> ■: 0^P\ ■
Name ancUTitle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ^-11' 102,^

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #4
SS-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date 7f^Na

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. i
SS-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-0^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods,
personal care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual
family unless the parent is employed in which case services can be
extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement,
including training and education, and other employment-related
services that do not provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance, subject to Department approval which may include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.4.1. Dental services.

1.2.4.2. Auto registration.

1.2.4.3. Personal care.

1.2.4.4. Books and tuition.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide ASAM level 2.7 and lower Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) treatment, supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible
pregnant and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

1.4. The Contractor shall keep a record of how many individuals are screened, how
many are determined eligible, and how many are served, as specified in Section
1.3.

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services or increase services that are
currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services currently
available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medlcald provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with the Department to review/assist
with program processes, service provision, and overall program outcomes.
Contractor shall work In collaboration with the Department to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws and
regulations which Include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, Including research conducted by student interns, using
Individuals served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating
any research involving the subjects or participants related to this
contract. The Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to
reject any such human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents and sentinel events which
include, but are not limited to reporting:

1.9.1. All critical Incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor
agrees that:

1.9.1.1. "Critical Incident" means any actual or alleged event or
situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious
harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well- being.
Including but not limited to:

1.9.1.1.1. Abuse;

1.9.1.1.2. Neglect;

1.9.1.1.3. Exploitation;

1.9.1.1.4. Rights violation;

1.9.1.1.5. Missing person;

1.9.1.1.6. Medical emergency:

1.9.1.1.7. Restraint; or

1.9.1.1.8. Medical error.

1.9.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon
as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.9.3. All Media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no later than 24 hours following the incident;

1.9.4. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

1.9.4.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
individual who is receiving services under this contract;

1.9.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the Department,
which shall include:

1.9.4.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

1.9.4.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the individual(s)
involved in the event;

1.9.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

1.9.4.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant
information, as well as the identification of any other
individuals involved;

1.9.4.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

1.9.4.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event.

1.9.4.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed "Sentinel Event Reporting Form"
(February 2017), available at
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-
form.pdf to the Department.

1.9.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after

filing the form in Sectioni .9.4.3. above shall be reported to the
Department, in writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department; and

1.9.4.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 1.9.4.1
through 1.9.4.4 above if required by the department; and

1.9.4.6. Report the event in Sections 1.9.4.1 through 1.9.4.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all
client activity and client contact within three (3) days following the activity or
contact as directed by the Department. The Contractor shall:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN ODORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1. Screening.

1.10.1.2. Fee determination

1.10.1.3. Admission.

1.10.1.4. Billing.

1.10.1.5. Disenrollment.

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data.

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific
treatment goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

1.11. The Contractor shall, obtain written consent from the client utilizing the consent
form as provided by Department prior to providing services. The Contractor
shall ensure:

1.11.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent form is not:

1.11.1.1. Entered into the WITS (or approved alternative) system.

1.11.1.2. Provided services under this contract.

1.11.2. Any client refusing to sign the consent form is assisted with finding
alternative payers for necessary services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
have access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as
available.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate
child care.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.
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2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to
end their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting
women's ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting
women's substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served which may include, but are not limited
to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SLID treatment and
residential services for pregnant and parenting women and their
children distributed to the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.

2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models
and/or best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to
monitor case management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the client's Substance Use Disorder

diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DSM-5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial
evaluation completed in accordance with Technical Assistance
Publication (TAP) 21: Addiction Counseling Competencies, available
at http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-Counseling-
Competencies/SMA15-4171.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. This may include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD)
residential treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 826.
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2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up
to four (4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite
substance use disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may
include, but is not limited to, apartments within an apartment complex,
group housing, or shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing
services shall be limited to 4 months based off the TANF regulations
around non-assistance categories.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization
Services that allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving
scheduled onsite SUD treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first
24 hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services
and after being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment

services, as appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of
Sudden Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used
to promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or
sleeping. For detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.Org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.Org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.f
ull.pdf.

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the pn-site facility be
licensed but should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to
developmentally appropriate childcare.

2.8.4. Supports for before and after school care are available for school age
children.
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2.8.5. Arrangements are in place that allow children to continue attending
school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall;

2.9.1. Contact the Doorway in the client's area to connect the client with
SUD treatment services.

2.9.2. Assist the client with accessing services by:

2.9.2.1. Identifying alternate providers.

2.9.2.2. Actively reaching out to alternate providers on behalf of the
client.

2.9.3. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative
provider. These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.3.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.3.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.3.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on

the fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.3.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess
and respond.

2.9.4. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC),
and Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.4.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.9.4.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.4.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.4.4. Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.

2.9.4.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.5. Establish and maintain a waiting list that monitors the wait time for
clients to receive services, from the date of initial contact to the date
clients first receive services, other than screening and assessment.
The Contractor shall ensure the waiting list includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.5.1. A unique patient identifier;

2.9.5.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment;
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2.9.5.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services;

2.9.5.4. Referrals made for treatment or Interim services; and

2.9.5.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.9.6. Provide a monthly report to the Department, indicating the average
wait time for all clients, by type of service and payer source.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco education and treatment to all clients

receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all
clients based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013)
domains. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written
in terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.11.4. Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD)
records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider,
that safeguards, including consent and notices required by 42 CFR
Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not
limited to, linking women with community services within the area in
which she will be permanently housed after receiving treatment
services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children
have access to the treatment plan-specific services.
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2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are
not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid or other private
insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP
27: Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-
for-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but
are not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling.

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers
working within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Nonclinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling
services for clients and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this contract, which shall include medical and behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice in accordance with Chapter He-P BOO Residential Care and Health
Facility Rules, Part He-P 826 Rules for Residential Treatment and
Rehabilitation. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited
to:

2.14.1. A minimum of one licensed supervisor, defined as:
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2.14.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC); or

2.14.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds
eth Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential: or

2.14.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

2.14.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided
and the number of clients served including, but not limited to:

2.14.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCs, LADCs and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice of
Board of Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any
clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

2.14.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have

completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health Practice of Board, or Psychology and are working to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.3. Certified Recovery Support Workers (GRSW) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a GRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.3. Ensuring no licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve
(12) staff, in accordance with evidence-based practices.

2.14.4. Providing ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals
in accordance with evidence based practices, at a minimum:

2.14.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources of
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic
assessment of progress.

2.14.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision.
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2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)
through staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Public Health Epidemiologist in order to
collect data, complete surveillance, and complete evaluation of social
determinants of health and other public health and community health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB &
STDs. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served and ensure the safety of
clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as
well as at discharge based on policies and processes approved by
the Department within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the
contract effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy
and procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their
children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster
situations through continuous staff development that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).
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2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for
any eligible services.

2.18.2. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from
sources the contractor may identify.

2.18.3. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has
in place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for
all program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor
shall ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or
community partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective
action plan described in Section 6.1, as monitored by the Department, until such
time the Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing
services in the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the number of individuals
screened, determined eligible, and served as provided in Section 1.4.

3.3. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents, as provided in Section 1.9, as
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours following the incident.
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3.4. The Contractor shall report on sentinel events, as specified in Section 1.9. no
later than 72 hours of the event occurring.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on their efforts to conduct third-
party billing for any eligible services and seek alternate sources of funding for
non-billable services, as provided In Sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no
later than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described
in Section 2.9.5 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per
week.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite

employment programming to increase in financial stability and reduce
dependence of public assistance.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
(3) receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of
the services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of thirty (30)
families in New Hampshire.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to
the Department for approval no later than sixty (60) days from the contract
effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from
the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections 2.8.2 and
2.17.1 to the Department no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective
date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9.5
and 2.9.6 to the Department once every two (2) months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section
2.17.3 to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used In
trainings described in Section 2.17.5 to the Department no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.18.1
to the Department for review and approval no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

6. Contract Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.1.1. The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified
by the Department.

6.1.2. The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccurrence(s) of each deficiency.

6.1.3. The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above.

6.1.4. A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified
in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above are effective.

6.1.5. The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation
and effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
in accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalog of Federal and
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Program, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 18NHTANF.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10"^) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month.

3.2. The Contractor shall have documentation available upon request covering the same
period as the invoice in Section 3.1 that identifies all payments made on behalf of each
client, including the purpose for each payment, the payee for each payment, and any
appropriate backup documentation.

3.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.4. The invoice shall be submitted by mail through the US Postal Services or email to:

Director

Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Email: Annette.escalante@dhhs.nh.gov
4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from the Form

P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Any request to adjust a prior invoice must be accompanied by supporting documentation and
is subject to Department approval.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

8. Non Reimbursement for Services
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8.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client is or may be eligible for an alternative payer for services described in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work including, but not limited to:

8.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for clients who
are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

8.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare.

8.1.3. Services covered by a client's private insurer(s).

8.2. Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not

covered by the payers listed in Section 8.1.

9. The Contractor shall:

9.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided under this
contract from public and private insurance plans, the clients, and the Department.

9.2. Utilize a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the greatest
degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the program and to
immediately refund any overpayments.

9.3. Maintain accurate accounting and records for all sen/ices billed, payments received
and overpayments refunded.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment

10.1. The Contractor shall:

10.1.1. Review the invoice and associated backup documentation no later than twenty
(20) days following the last day of the billing month and submit the invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.1.2. Correct any errors in the invoice and documentation no later than seven (7)
days after being notified of the errors, and submit the corrected invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days after the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

11. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services.
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SS-2017.DFA4>2-OPEN(M)2
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on November 25, 2015.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this oBicc is concerned.

Business ID: 735370

Certificate Number 0004523513

m

fib

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of June AD. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, CT Do U OrV.U do hereby certify that:ph
{Name of elected Officer of the Agency, cannot be a contract signatory.)

1. lama duly elected Officer of. Ho pp. nn ^aA/£n Hi 11
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Agency held on O U 2-3 ; I ̂

(Date)

RESOLVED: That the "XlO |m

(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect
as of the day of 1^ , 20 1^ .

(date contract signed)

4, K?..rru is the duly elected 'C'^cior
(Name of wntract Signatory) . (Title of Contra9^ Signatory)

of the agency.

(Title of Contra^ Signator

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Sfra-AfTCTN

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _day 0 , 2oAfL-

Bv o. f]1u.rphL.|
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agtncy J

Pi iRi \C 69; r

1-2024
Notary ustice of the Peace



yACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrYYYY)

07/30/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed. •
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subiect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementis).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Fairtey Kenneally
P'ifnF.,- (603)293-2791 (603)293-7188
A^RESS-

INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NA)C •

INSURER A Market

INSURED

Hope on Haven Hill. inc.

PC Box 1272

Rochester NH 03867

INSURERS Wesco Insurance Co 25011

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 REVISION NUMBER:

InSr
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOV\N MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
POLICY EPF POLICY EXP

TVPS OF INSURANCE

X

riTHirni POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

PRO-
JECTPOLICY□ ® □LOC

OTHER:

HUP2419-03

(MM/DO/YYYYI

OS/01/2019

IMMnTOYYYYl

08/01/2020

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
CAWACE TO RENTED
PREMISES tEaocgjfreocel

MEO EXP (Any eo* py»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COMPIOPAGG

Abuse and Molestation

1,000.000

50,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000.000

2,000.000

% 1,000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acckMnt) % 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Pw pwton)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HUA24 20-03 08/01/2019 08/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par accHlenll

Uninsured nwtorist s 1,000.000

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

^TchocVurrS^: 1,000.000

HUU2421-03 08/01/2019 08/01/2020 AGGREGATE 1,000,000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS UABIUTY y , f,
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
II yaa. daaertba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakM

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

WWC3426009 08/02/2019 08/02/2020 E.L EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltionai RamarVa Schadula. may ba atuchad If mora apaca la raquirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire DHHS
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



# & ,
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Mission Statement

To provide treatment and recovery support for pregnant and postpartum

women with substance use disorder so that they can become healthy,

nurturing and confident mothers and members of their community.

P.O. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03866 (603) 841-5353 • Fax: (603) 841-5585 www.hopconhavenhill.org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

March 29,2019

"Trusted advisors for
over 50 years!"

To the Board ofDirectors

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
Rochester, New Hampshtrfl

We have audited 4e accon^ying financial statements of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,2018 and the related
statements of acUvitios and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
dien ended and the related notes to the financial statements. ^

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with occ^ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, in^lementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free fiom material misstatcraent,
wlicther due to fimid or error. '

Andltor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to e?^ress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accqjtcd in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about wdiether the financial statements are free material misstatement.

/m audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected dqjend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, wdiether
due to fraud or eiror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and feir presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit proccAues that are qjpropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe foat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, tbe financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, ttio
financial position of Hope on Haven Hfll, Inc. as of June 30,2018, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accqpted in tbe United States of America.

Certified Pubtic Aceountants
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2 Storer Street

. P.O. Box 328

Kennebonk, Maine 04043-032B

TEL 207 985-3339

FAX 207 985-1339

One New Hampshire Avenue

Suite 230

Portsmouth,NH 03801

TEL 603 430-6200

FAX 603 430-6209

1 Hampton Road

Suite 306

Exeter, NH 03833

TEL 603 772-3460

FAX 603 772-7097

httpyAvww.dmcpa.com
e-mall: clm0clmcp3.com

I

Raymond L Bald, CPA, CFE

Cindy K. Edwards, MBA

Wanda J. Ring, CPA
Melanie Bunker. CPA

Michelle Goldsmith, MST. CPA

Member:

American Institute of CPAs

Licensed In Maine. New Hampshire
and Massachusetts



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS

CURJIENT ASSETS

Cash $  740,294

Medical billing receivable 55,613

Prepaid expenses 642

Total Current Assets 796,549
}

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Building 221,727

Land 39,128

Equipment 3,000

Furniture and fixtures 10,284

Vehicles 29,683

Leasehold improvements 200,935

504,757

Less Accumulated depreciation 15,660

Total Property and Equipment, Net 489,097

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits 6,600

Total Other Assets 6,600

Total Assets $  1,292,246

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,2018

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Line of credit

Accnied expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Note payable, net of current portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

10,631
28,999

62,954

30,951

133.535

118,860

118,860

252395

834,351
205,500

1.Q39.8S1

1.292,246

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTlVmES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Donations

Grants

Insurance reimbursement revenue

Pundraisbg

Food stamp reimbursement
Other income

Interest Income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total Revenue and Other Support

EXPENSES

Program Services
Supporting Services;

Management and general
Fundraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

Changes in Net Assets

NET ASSETS. Beginning of Year, as restated

NET ASSETS, End of Year

s 503,919 $

563,873

497,220

56,972

5,249

2,919
241

5,000

185,500 $

25,000

/

(5,000)

689,419

588,873

497,220

56,972

5,249

2,919
241

1,635,393 205.500 1,840,893

870,066 870,066

175,930

139,106

- 175,930

139,106

315.036 315,036

1,185,102 . 1,185,102

450,291 205,500 655,791

384,060 384.060

s 834,351 $ 205,500 $ 1,039,851

See Notes to Financial Statements

-4-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Program Management

Services and General Paodmlsing Total

Salaries and wages $  569,834 $  76,701 $  55,183 $  701,718

Professional fees 27,456 50,761 38,901 117,118

Payroll taxes 50,214 6,206 - 56,420

Employee benefits 42,459 5,248 - 47,707

Direct services 47,013 - - 47,013

Fundraising - - 41,529 41,529

Rent 26,987 10,560 -
37,547

Repair and maintenance 20,744 1,638 - 22,382

Utilities 14,338 1,033 - 15,371

Advertismg 12,583 - 2,221 14,804

Insurance 8,187 4,217 12,404

Travel 10,837 1,339 12,176

Office expense 7,469 3,847 11,316

Depreciation 10,934 - 10,934

Telephone and internet 7,016 448 7,464

Dues and subscriptions 3,839 1,978 5,817

Payroll service charges • 5,409 5,409

Equipment rental 2,993 1,542 4,535

Taxes 3,617 447 4,064

Meals and entertainment 1,935 894 2,829

Bonk service charges 1,056 909 1,965

Interest expense 387 1,460 1,847

Memberships and affiliations - 1,293 1,293

Licenses and permits - - 1.272 1,272

Registrations 121 -
121

Outpatient 47 - 47

$  870,066 $  175,930 $  139.106 $ 1.185,102

See Notes to Financial Statements

-5-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

VEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVmES:

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities;

Depreciation
Changes In assets and liabilities that used (provided) cash;
Medical billing receivable
Grant receivable

Prepaid expenses

Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVmES:

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVITlES;

Net proceeds (repayments) on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF VEAR

$ 655,791

10,934

39,120

48,568

817

(2,800)

4,764

31,794

788,988

(121,685)

(121,685)

4,000

(7,689)

(3,689)

663,614

76,680

$ 740,294

1.847

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION;

Interest expense ,

There was no cash paid during 2018 for taxes on income.

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment financed with long-term debt

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note I - Summary ofSieniflcont AccounHne Policies

Nature of Activities - Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (The Organization) was organized November 25, 2015. The Organization is a
level 3.5 substance abuse treatment fecllity serving homeless, pregnant and newly parenting mothers. The Organization was
established to provide a nurturing therapeutic home environment for women with substance abuse disorder who are seeking
recovery by providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment services, family therapy, parenting classes,
advance in education and life coaching to support families in their recovery from addiction.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
and accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. j

Basis of Presentation - Financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, Financial Statements of Not-for-Prqfit Organizations. Under this
standard, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization's net assets and its revenues and expenses are classified as temporarily restricted and unrestricted based on
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. These classifications are defined as follows:

•  Unrestricted net assets are not restricted by donors, or the donor-imposed restrictions have expired.
•  Temporarily restricted net assets contain donor-imposed restrictions that permit the Organization to use or expend

the donated assets as specified and are satisfied cither by the passage of time or by actions of the Organization.
•  Permanently restricted net assets include accumulated donations which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus

be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for program operations in accordance with those
restrictions imposed by the donor. There arc no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30,2018.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks. From time to time during
the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization's bank account balances may have exceeded federally insured limits.
Management has evaluated this risk and considers it to be a normal business risk.

Donated Assets - Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their estimated
fair values at the date of donation. Donations of inventory items held for resale arc recognized when sold because the
Organization does not have an objective measurement for determining fair value.

Donated Services - Donated services are reflected in the financial statements at the fair value of the services received only if
the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills that arc provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchas^ If not provided by donation.

Estimates - The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual rtsults could differ from those estimates.

Income Tax Status • The Organization is exempt fiT)ra federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, donations to the Organization qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under ScclioD
!70(bXl)(A), and the Organization has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section
509(aX2).

The federal informational tax return of the Organization Is subject to examination, generally for three years after the returns
are filed.

- 7-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1 - Summary ofSlsnifJcant Accountine Policies (continued)

Grants and Medical Billing Receivable - Grants and medical billing receivable are stated at the amount management expects
to collect ftom outstanding balances. Management considers accounts receivable to be delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are
still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a reduction to accounts receivable. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2018. The
Organization does not require collateral when extending credit.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which is 5 to 30 years. Normal repairs
and maintenance are expensed as mcurred. Upon sale or retirement of depreciable assets, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts. Any gain or loss on the sale or retirement is recognized in current operations.
Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property
and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets arc placed in
service as instructed by the donors. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at
that time.

Contributions - Urjconditional promises to give arc recognized as revenue when the underlying promises are received by the
Organization. Gifts of cash and other assets arc reported as temporarily restricted siqjport if Ibey are received with dooor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and reported in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions.
Temporarily restricted contributions which are both received and released within the same year arc recorded as an increase In
temporarily restricted net assets and net assets released from restrictions. A portion of the contributions received by the
Organization are temporarily restricted for a specified geographic area. It Is the Organization's policy to use such funds for
the specified purpose as soon as practical and prudent.

Functional Allocation of Expenses - The expenses of providing various program and supporting services have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Allocations may be direct or indirect according to the type of expense incurred.

Advertising Costs - The Organization's policy is to expense advertising costs as they arc incurred. Advertising expense
totaled $14,804 in 2018

Note 2 - Line of Credit

In January 2017 the Organization obtained a line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $24,999. In July 2017
the amount was increased to $50,000. The line bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.50% with a floor of
5.25%. The interest rate was 6.50% at June 30,2018. The line is secured by all personal property of the Organization. Interest
expense paid on the line was $1,460 for the year raded June 30,2018.

-8-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 3-Note Payable

The following summarizes the Organization's long-term debt obligations as of June 30,2018:

Terms Security

Term loan with the New Hampshire
Health and Education Facilities

Authority. Monthly payments of
principal and interest of S2,692. The
loan has a fixed interest rate of 1.00%

and matures in March 2023. Building $ 149.811

Total Debt 149,811

Less: current portion 30.951

$  118.860

Interest expense under this debt a^^ment amounted to $387 for the years ended June 30, 2018.

Future minimum principal payments under the agreement are as follows at June 30,;

2019 $  30,951
2020 31,262
2021 31,576
2022 31,893
2023 24.129

$  149.811

Note 4 ■ Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30,2018:

Purchase of rehab location ' $ 205.500

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by
donors as follows during the year ending June 30,2018;

Purchase of rehab location $ S.QQQ

Note 5 - Related Party

During the year ended June 30, 2018 the Organization leased a residential home from a former executive director. The term
of the lease was for twenty years with a base rent of $2;200 per month increasing 2.5% every five years. The lease included
an option to purchase the property which the Organization exercised in April 2018. Total rent paid under this lease prior to
exercising Che purchase option was $19,800.

-9-



hope on haven hell, inc.

notes to financial statements

VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 7 - Rffiremgnt Pf»„ ^

plan-^OTsani ^e!!;
Note S - Cottcer^tratinn ofCfPi^lt fH^h

The derived ,50/. of i. opererin^ ̂ veeue and auppori .00. a g„ven.™„. ageney.

Note 9 - Commlinffnt

-h ,oeario„ waa po.haaed whh

Note 10 - /Wpr Period

ended Jutw30,20ir receivable had Dot been entered for the year
the year ended June 30,2017 are as follows; ^ *" unrestncted net assets and financial posiHon as of and for

Medical billing receivables
Insurance reimbursement revenue
Unrestricted net assets

As previously
Reported

$
$

$ 289327

Restated

t  94.733
^  94,733
5  384,060

Note IJ - Subseauerjt pv*f,H>

financial statements at March 29.2019. disclosed in note 6. that were material to the
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Board of Directors

As of May 17, 2019

Sarah LandreS; Esq.-Chair

Public Defender Program

603-275-0265

Sarah.landres(S)fimail.com

Term ending: 12/2020

Joseph Hannon, MD

603-292-5852

Joehannon4nh(S)fimail.com

Term ending: 12/2020

Jillian Mulrooney-Vice Chair

508-269-5706

Jillmulroonev33(S)hotmail.com

Term ending: 10/2021

Kathleen Routhier, RN

Wentworth Douglas Hospital

603-767-4855

rdrouthier(a)fimail.com

Term ending: 12/2020

Michael Murphy, -Treasurer

Murphy, Powers & Wilson, P.C.

603-926-8063

michael(5)mDandwcDa.com

Term ending: 12/2020

Colin Walker

Ameriprise Financial Services

603-767-2992

Colin.walkerfSamof.com

Term ending: 02/2021

Christine List-Secretary

Orr & Reno, PA

857-753-8827

Clistl27(S)gmail.com

Term ending: 02/2022

Patte-Anne Ardizzoni

Southern NH Services

781-983-0259

Datteardizzoni(5)aol.com

Term ending: 02/2022

Nick Couturier

603-817-3876

nick6464(S)gmail.com

Term ending: 02/2022

P.O. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03866 (603) 841-5353 • Fax: (603) 841-5585 www.hopeonhavenhill.org



Kerrytee Norton, RN

Knorton@hopeonhavenhill.org

Work Experience

Dates Employed

7/1/15-Present Operations Director/Founder

Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester NH

Co-Founder of emerging Non-ProfIt Residential treatment facility for Pregnant Women with Substance
Use Disorder. Responsibilities Include but not limited to. Filing for 501 c(3). Grant writing, preparing
and testifying for Variance and Planning Board, Submitting application for Level 3.5 Inpatlent
treatment facility iicensure, Prepare policies and procedures and admission criteria, prepare facility
policies, Coordinate fundralsing and volunteers, Give presentations to local schools, civic agencies,
businesses and NH allies, Actvocate for Prevention, Treatment and Recovery services for NH and care

for Men and Women who reach out to us while unable to access care In NH and assist them with

getting support and treatment. After opening supervise and train Recovery support staff. Maintain
schedule for recovery support for programming schedule of residential program. Implement, monitor

and supervise medication management of residential programming, implement, monitor and
supervise urine drug screenings for residential program. Responsible for day to day operations of
residential program.

11/2008-11/13/2015 RN

Garrison Women's Health Center, Dover NH

Triage and infertility Nurse In Busy OB-GVN office. Responsibilities Include but not limited to triaglng
all patient calls. New Prenatal OB intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage including call
weekends. Employee Health, OSHA training and compliance for all employees, new hire training and
policy and protocol implementation.

1/2006-4/2010 RN, CPSN

Atlantic Plastic Surgical Center, Portsmouth NH

All facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery. Admit patients, Circulate and Scrub
during surgical cases and Recover patients In PACU. Certified as a Certified Plastic Surgical Nurse wHh
National Certification In Skin Wellness. Certified to perform MIcrodermabraslon, Chemical Peels and
Laser Therapy.



5/1994-10/2008 Maternal Child Health RN/Resource Nurse

Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH

All facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor ancf6ell\rerv, Postpartum Well Baby Nursery, Level 2
Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support. Sibling Class
facilitator, NRP Instructor, PALS instructor, Resource/Charge Nurse and Staff orientation.

1/2002-1/2005 Pedlatric Nurse

Portsmouth Pedlatric Associates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend coverage for Triage care for sick visits of all Pedlatric patients In a very busy pedlatric
practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends I became very competent in all facets of pedlatric
care and emergencies.

1/2002-1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator

Harbour Women's Health, Portsmouth NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns. Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with patient
results and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with Infertility patients. Taught and
coordinated all Childbirth Education programs.

5/19993-5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage ail patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/1993-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse

SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse In SAD 60. Worked In all School. Elementary, Middle School and High School.

Past and Present Certifications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN And STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse, License compact state.

References upon request



Gabriella E. Olhava

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Homeless Center for Strafford County- Rochester, NH August 2018-Present
Professional Intern/ Case manager

•  Collect and document client information and ensure clients' fit into the program
•  Participate in Grant writing, fund development, shelter management, interactions with local welfare officers;

Achieved Annual appeal goal by 20% due to grant writing
•  Guide conflict resolution between residents and plan individual goals by sharing and discussing available

resources

•  Evaluate client information and determine appropriate degree in which the shelter can serve the client
•  Participate in collection of housing and saving payments from residents

•  Sustain a running record of client information, services provided, and payments completed
•  Create a living document using Google Drive for the entire organization to improve communication with staff
•  Maintain professional working relationships with area agencies to communicate client applications and

evaluations

• Worked in ordinance with HCSC protocols, guidelines, and regulations

Seacoast Reads-Durham, NH January 2018 - May 2018
Tutor

•  Tutor children in kindergarten who are falling behind in reading and writing by encouraging the children to stay
motivated about learning, even when things get challenging

•  Create a safe and comfortable environment where the children are able to be receptive of the material at hand

Seacoast Volleyball Club- Dover, NH January 2017- May 2017
Head Coach for a I2Uteam January 2016-May 2016
•  Organize and plan practices, develop and maintain relationships with parents, and train young athletes
•  Give back to the sport and show young players the balance between working hard and having fun in the sport

LEADERSHIP AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

UNH Women's Volleyball Team, Player & Captain December 2015- Current
Returning Captain- 4-year scholarship athlete

• Manage communication between Coaching staff and Team

•  Plan, organize and develop events that are related to the program- Volley4Holly, Spread Respect, Team Impact
•  Uphold and enforce team rules, listen to needs of team and put thoughts to actions
• Multi-task and time manage

• Won two championships and made two NCAA appearances

AWARDS, HONORS, AND ACCOLADES

•  Ed Jentes Coaches Award April 27"*' 2017
•  Holly Young Most Valuable Player April 14, 2017
•  America East Commissioner's Honor Roll (3.5+ CPA) September 2017-May 2018

September 2018-current
EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH Expected: May 2019
Bachelor ofScience: Social Work

Sexual Harassment Prevention Trained February 4'^ 2019

Narcan Certification November 15'^ 2019



cm

HEATHER

RYDER

EXPERIENCE

CRSW, Seacoast Mental Health Center, Portsmouth NH 08/2018 -

Present

Assessing the recovery support services and case management needs of the client
while completing SLID case management assessment to provide the most effective
services to meet the client's needs. Providing direct and indirect recovery support
services and case management to the client. Transporting clients to and from
appointments that support their recovery, providing clients with resources necessary
to maintain their sobriety and participating in recovery activities with the clients.

Intake Specialist, Keystone Hall, Nashua NH 07/2016 - 08/2018

Scheduling clients for admission, completing the admissions process,
communicating with clients to gather necessary documentation, completing phone
screens with incarcerated clients, answering any questions regarding the admission
process and providing referrals for additional treatment options.

Reception, Keystone Hall, Nashua NH 04/2016 - 07/2014

Answering phones and directing calls, monitoring secured door, greeting visitors,
sending applications for treatment, searching clients as they come in, check-in
clients for appointments.

IBM MONITORING TEAM, WORLD WIDE TECH SERVICES, HW

STAFFING, TEWSKBURY, MA 03/2015 - 04/2016



/■

Monitoring 100+ technician's departure and arrival times, communications
with vendors and IBM, Telephones, Emails. Microsoft Excel

BACK ROOM PRODUCTION, SAVERS, NASHUA, NH 7/2013-3/2015
Sorting through donations, pricing merchandise, customer service

HIGH LINER FOODS, PORTSMOUTH, NH 11/2012-2/2013

Working on a fast pace production line in factory setting

CREW MEMBER, WENDYS, LEE, NH — 9/2012-11/2012
Customer service, cashier

CREW MEMBER, SUBWAY, DOVER, NH- 2/2012-8/2012
Customer service, cashier, food prep, dish washer

CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER, PORTSMOUTH, NH 04/2008-
10/2011

drawer audits, associate scheduling, handling $2,000+ at a time , closing and
opening the store, keeping inventory, ordering inventory, managed 15 +
associates at one time, stocking shelves, customer service.

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University - Candidate for a bachelor's degree in
Psychology with a concentration in addictions - Anticipated graduation date
February 2020

Recovery Coach Academy - Completed October 2016

CRSW-2017



/

SKILLS

Microsoft word, Excel , customer service skills, organization skills, reception , WITS
Client track , an understanding of substance misuse issues and their impact on
people ,a non-judgmental attitude .empathy and a calm, caring approach

REFERRALS

References upon request



Carey Johnson

Oblective

My goal is to obtain a position where I can use my strong interpersonal skills, ability to multitask, ray attention to detail, a
positive attitude, and the opportunity to contribute.

Experience

11/06/2017-Present Hope on HavenHiU Somersworth,NH

Finance & Organizational Director

•  Ensuring time sheets are recorded properly and appropriate payroU processes followed.
•  Oversee, review, and adhere to the budgets

• Monitor cash flow, accounts, and other financial transactions

•  Create and maintain relationships with service providers and contractors, including banking institutions and
accountants

•  Update and implement financial policies and procedures
•  Developing and administering human resources plans and procedures that relate to company personnel.

• Maintains employee benefits programs and informs employees of benefits by studying and assessing benefit needs
and trends; recommending benefit programs to management; directing the processi^ of benefit claims; obtaming and
evaluating benefit contract bids; awarding benefit contracts; designing and conducting educational programs on
benefit'programs.

•  Ensures legal compliance by monitoring and implementing applicable human resource federal and state requirements;
conducting investigations; maintaining records; representing the organization.

• Maintains historical human resource records by designing a filing and retrieval system; keeping past and current
records.

10/06/2015 -10/31/2017 NH Providers Association Concord, NH

Billing & Credentiallng Specialist

•  Completes provider credentialing and re-credentialing applications; monitors applications and foUows-up as needed.
•  Enters information necessary for insurance claims such as patient, insurance ID, diagnosis and treatment codes and

modifiers, and provider infonnation. Insures claim information is complete and accurate.
•  Submits insurance claims to clearinghouse or individual insurance companies electronically or via paper CMS-1500

form.

•  Follows up witii insurance company on ui^aid or rejected claims. Resolves issue and re-submits claims.
•  Follows HIPAA guidelines in handling patient information.
• Understands managed care authorizations and limits to coverage such as the number of visits.
• May have to verify patient benefits eligibility and coverage.
• Ability to look up ICD diagnosis and CPT treatment codes fi-om online service or using traditional coding references.
«  Prepare, process and track all billable invoices to clients monthly.

05/20/2015-10/01/2015 Piaewood Healthcare/Pain Care Somersworth, NH

Medical Billing Specialist



•  Post transactions to journals, ledgers and other records.
•  Communication with vendors regarding payments verbally, electronic, and written.
•  Receives cash paytncnts and agplies .credit to customer accounts. ^
•  Communicating wi£fi customers by maldng collection calls and following up on payments.
•  FoUows established procedures for processing receipts and cash, sorts and files documents after posting.
•  Prepare bank deposits, oversee accounts receivable recordkeeping, ensure cash receipts, claims, or unpaid invoices are

accounted for properly.

01/22/07-06/30/13 Garrison City Early Childhood Center Dover, NH

Lead Level Klndergarten/Pre-K Teacher

•  Knowledge of administrative and clerical procedures and systems such as word processing, managing files and records,
designing forms, and other office procedures and terminology.

•  Excellent knowledge of group behavior and dynamics, societal trends and influences, human migrations, ethnicity,
cultures and their history and origins.

•  Proficiency at talking to others to convey information effectively.
•  Expertise at selecting and using traming/instmcfional methods and procedures appropriate for the situation when

learning or new things in accordance with the State of NH Curriculum Frameworks.
•  In-depth ability to monitor/assess performance of self and other individuals to make improvements or take corrective

action. . . •
•  Great ability to use logic and reasoning to identify the strengths and weaknesses of alternative solutions, conclusions or

approaches to problems.
•  Creating materials to communicate with parents and children on a weekly, monthly and quarterly basis.

Knowledge and SldUs

•  Proficiency in numeric keypad and alpha keypad with excellent data entry skills.
•  Proficiency in operating office equipment of all kinds.
•  Fast learner with the ability to leara and use new applications and programs
•  Proficiency in Centricity and other clearinghouse programs.
•  Proficiency in Microsoft applications, including Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook
•  Strong multitasking, accessing multiple data bases and sites at the same time.
• Good communication »nd customer service skills and able to communicate with all levels of the organization, and

external customers.

• Ability to work under deadlines and time restraints.
•  Ability to read, to interpret, and to carry out oral and written instructions, and to write legibly in English.
• Ability to plan, to organize, and to prioritize work independently, with team or with supervisory feedback.
•  An understanding of compliance with HIPAA privacy requirements and confideatiality of information.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kerry Norton (Interim) Executive Director 95,000 10% 9,500

To be Hired Operations Director 80,000 25% 20,000

GabriellaOIhava Case manager 45,000 100% 45,000

Heather Ryder Case manager 40,000 50% 20,000

Carey Johnson Billing 60,000 30% 18,000



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Cbristine M. Tappan
Associate Commissione)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 3, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a retroactive renewal
option to the sole source agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.. Vendor #275119-8001, 326
Rochester Hill Rd. Rochester, NH 03867, for the provision of substance use disorder treatment
services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal
Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by
$500,000 from $964,238 to $1,464,238 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30,
2018 to June 30, 2019, effective retroactive to June 30 2018, upon Governor and Executive Council
approval.,10,0%. Federal Funds

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3,
2016 (Late item #A) and amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A) and again on June 21. 2017 (Item
#20A). / » . \

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 in the following account with authority to adjust
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without approval from Governor
and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95^5-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN; SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SPY Class Title
Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modifjad
Budget

2017
502-

500891

Payments to
Providers

45057500 $482,119 SO $482,119

2018
502-

500891

Payments to
Providers

45057500 $482,119 $0 $482,119

2019
502-

500891

Payments to
Providers

45057500 $0 $500,000 $500,000

Total: $964,238 $500,000 $1,464,238

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive to June 30, 2018 because the amendment is being submitted after
the release of an audit report to allow the Executive Council to review the audit report prior to renewing
the Agreement, and to add contract monitoring language to address the audit findings. The original
agreement is sole source because the Contractor has beeri identified as having the ability and
capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing
their child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose for this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing substance use
disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at
or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. The
Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or suppollive
housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders and who are
currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use disorders who have
a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment.

Utilization pattems and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
due to concern that seeking help for a substance use disorder could result In separation from their
children.

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF program is
to promote the independence of needy families through work and education. The vendor will address
needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children in residence. The
program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and
addresses an urgent need within our community. The Contractor is providing services that assist
families to reduce and remove bam'ers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce
and in the larger community. The services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate
dependence on public assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while
addressing clients' substance use disorders.

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual counseling,
and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be based on
American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional
Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an Individual that will be used for
service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to
allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may Include, but are not limited to:

•  Communication classes
1

•  Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

•  MIndfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching sen/ices

The Department is satisfied with the service provided by this Contractor. The original
agreement established services for one (1) year, and included the option to renew contract services for
up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor
performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. Amendment #1 exercised one (1)
of the two (2) years of renewal. This request, if approved, exercises the final year of renewal that is
available in the contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Greater Manchester area.



His Exceiloncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Page 3 of 3

Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558j U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

iristlne M. Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Approved by:
iteffney A. Meyers
Cbmmissionei^

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 3rd Amendment lo the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #3") dated this 27th of June 2018, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, -Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department') and Hope on Haven HI!!, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester. NH 03867,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item #A) as amended on April 19, 2017 (item #5A)
and June 21, 2017 (item #20A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3,
the State modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract and renew
contract services for up to two (2) additional years, upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the contract completion date, irtcrease tti© price
limitation, and modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.5, Contractor Phone Number, to read:

603-841-5353.

2. Form P-37, Genera) Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2019. ^

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,464,238

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Relnemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9330.

6. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.11, Paragraph 2.11.4, to
read:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment lU
SS-2017-OFA-<J2-OPEND-02 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

m

2.11.4 Ensure, If the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder
(SUD) records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2
provider, that safeguards, including consent and notices required
by 42 CFR Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

7. Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 6, Contract Compliance, to read:

6. Contract Compliance

6.1 The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the.date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan irrcludes, at a minimum:

6.1.1 The specific actlon(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified t)y
the Department.

6.1.2 The specific actlon(s) to be taken to prevent any future reoccurrence{s) of
each deficiency.

6.1.3 The specific action steps and time line for Implementing the actions
identified in Subsections 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 (above).

6.1.4 A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions Identified In
6.1.1 and 6.1.2 (above) are effective.

6.1.5 The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation and
effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

8. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6.
9. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3, SFY 2019 Budget
10. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Hope on Haven HIO, Inc. Amendment #3
SS-2017-OFA-02-OPEND-02 Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders
This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Djedalltment of Health and Human Sen/ices

Christine M. Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Contractor Name:

Date

Icc

Acknowledgement:
State of County of_

ftio- J >s _ .Title:

on 6? j-2^1^
JveTorsatii

, tjefore the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the pl^Dson identified above', or Satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or JusticeT)f the Peace

PAlfL 0. SANDERSON
Peace - NewMy Commteslon Explfet January 39,2019

Hope on Haven Hl|], Inc.
SS.2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02

Amondment #3
Pege 3 o( 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE/OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1
NaNa A-me

Title:
u>

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by me GSverffor and Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
SS-2017-0FA-02-OPEND-02

Amendment <^3

Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning Iri this docurhent:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise^; unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, virhether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of ̂ rvice, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or softvrare characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instmction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 ExhIbltK ContractorInitia
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
networic and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, persona!
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or llnkabie to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden

. name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" mfeans Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indedpherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE C0r4TRACT0R

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and'Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in vioiation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
.application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

I

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data,, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit.
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidentiai Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private networi< (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be

. transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data vwll be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless.devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anfhspam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. '

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sut>contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance vwth industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88,-Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technoiogy, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated^ Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirernents will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information Itfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the service's for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific secuhty
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements vi/ill be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Secunty Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps://www.nh.gov/doft/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes a
confidential Information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in" connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email- addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometn'c identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
-derivative files.containing personally identifiable Information;-arg^iaigll cases,
such data must be encrypted at ail times when in transit,^ it'r^C or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a nsk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
.This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents; -

2. Determine if personally Identifiable-information is involved'in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different

^  options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. .

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pt must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange i^ues;

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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JeCtrey A. Meyers
Commisfiiooer

Teiry ft. Smith -
Director

-  STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department op health and human services

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILYASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03801-3867
603-27L9474 l-80a-8S2-334& Ext. 9474

PAXs 60^271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-73&-29B4 www.dbhs.nh.gov

June 6, 2017

DJU

His Exceliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House
Concord. N.H 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole 'source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregriant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Stratford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective July 1. 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September
7, 2016 (ltem#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and were subsequently amended on
April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor#
Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

New

Budget

Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism

615 Amherst St.

Nashua, NH 03063
166574-

8001
$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

Hope on Haven
Hill, Inc.

326 Rochester Hill Rd.

Rochester, NH 03867
275119-

8001
$482,119 ■ $482,119 $964,238

Families in

Transition

■  122 Market St.

Manchester. NH 03101
157730-

8001
$499,207 $499,207 $998,414

Total: $1,481,326 $1,481,326 $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.
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05.95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY-ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY Class Title
Activity

Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
New Budget

2017 502-500891
Payments to
Providers

45057500 $1,481,326 $0 $1,481,326

2018 502-500891
Payments to
Providers

45057500 $0 $1,481,326 51.481,326

Total: $1,481,326 $1,481,326 $2,962,652

EXPLANATION

The purpose for this sole source amendment is to increase funding with no change to
the completion date in order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential
and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who
are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty
Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. The original agreements were
sole source because these vendors have been identified as having the ability and capacity to
provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the
child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.

The current contracts were extended by Amendment #1 on April 19,2017 (Item # 5A)
from July 1, 2017 for an additional year to June 30, 2018 with no change to the price limitation
due to expected carry-over funding. At this time, the current vendors are expanding their
services to Include increased outpatient services offered in order to support and reach more
clientele. The current scope of the contract allows for various levels of service and during the
beginning phases of the contracts, the vendors were beginning with base services with plans
to expand further. This additional funding will support this expansion, as well as allow for long
tern sustainability planning and impiementation to occur vw'thin the agencies.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a groviring need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment.

Utilization pattems and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder Issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result In separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction .crisis
currently facing the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain
with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory
purpo^ of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be
cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF program Is to
promote the Independence,of needy families through work and education. These vendors will
address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children
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in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes
of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing
them from fully participating in the workforce^ and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health Illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic blopsychosocia) assessment of an Individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

•  Communication classes

• Anger management classes

• Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

• Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendoris. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As slated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the
contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 20171 and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Sen/ed; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by:
J^ey A.^Meyers
Commissiorier

The Department of Health and Human Services 'Mission is tojoin eomaunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendmenttl^to the OPEN DOORS - Homalessnsss Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessnefis PrevenUon and Sui^)orts
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Sutrstanca Use Dfsonfers
Contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment itT) dated this f^y lOth of 2017, Is by
and t>Qtween Ihe Stata of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hareinaflsr referred b as the "State' or 'Department") and Hope on Haven Kill, Inc.
(harelrrafler referred b as the Conlracbi'). a nonprofit comparty with a place of
business at 326 Rochsster Hill Road, Rochester, NH 03B67.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contract') approved by the Govemor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Lab Item A) and amended by an agreement
approved by Ihe Govemor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017'(lteni#SA), the
Contractor agreed to pertorm certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, Ihe State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes b the scope of
wort(, payment schedules and terms and conditbns of the oontrach and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions. Paragraph 16, the Sbte may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Govemor and
Executive coundl; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation without erdanding the
pleUon date: and

NOW THEREFORE, tn wnsideration of the foregoing and the mutoai covenants and
conditions contained In (he Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree b
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend FomiP-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limltatton by $432,119 from
$482,119 to read: $964,238.

uo*<vicnn



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands ais of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Ser\^ces

i/z/t
Date T erry Sm^

Director

Contractor Name:

Date Name: XsviU OIVtwiA)
T'lle;

Acknowledgement: : i
State of . County of on Wt "7
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person yyhose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

QAVtDW.MAmtNELU
Justice ol the PpeeeWtow Hampshire
My Oornnteddn EiQlretfJdy 34,20) 8

Name and TitlelSf Notary/r JusticeyOf the Peace ^

cAfOHHSngoao
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by (his office, Is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Jyliln
Date e:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CArOHHS'10021)
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JefTrey A. Meyers
Conxmittioner

Terry R. Smith
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DmSION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

laSPLEASANTSTREET, CONCORD, hm 03301^857
603-171-9474 I.800-8&2-334S Cxt 9471

KAX: 603-27M637 TDD Access: I-60D-73S-2964 www.dbbs.nb.cov

February 23. 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Stale House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements witti the vendors listed below, for the provision ot substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting, women >vho are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless In Strafford County,
effective upon Governor arid Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is' a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Coundl on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (Item #9), and September 21;
2016 (Item #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor# Current

Budget

Greater Nashua Council on

Alcoholism

615 AmherstSt.

Nashua. NH 03063

166574-B001 $500,000

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd.

Rochester, NH 03867
27511&-B001 $482,119

Families in Transition 122 Market St.
' Manchester. NH 03101

157730-8001 $499,207

Total: $1,481,326

,c/

Funds to.support this request are available In the following account for State Fiscal Vear 2017.

05-95-46^60010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL-SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326

Total: ..$1,481,326

EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder tfeatmerit services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have Income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level: and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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idenlified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. These amendments
are no additional cost, becau^ funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these"
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are (ess likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could result In separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program Is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family." The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program Is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, arid education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating In the workforce and In the larger community, The services
support farrillies in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to aeate a. holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. AH services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may Include, but are not limited to:

•  Communication classes

•  Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•. Therapeutic play

•  MIndfulness. Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department Is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year' of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for .one (1) year, with the option, to renew for up to two (2) additional years, bas^ upon
continued availatxHty of funding, satisfactory vendor pertormance. and approval of the Governor and
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Executive Council, ifiis amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A. notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these senrices has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennla.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100%.Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. TANF ; FAIN# 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds vnli not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Terry
Diredor

/

Approved by: \ }
JenreyA Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #f to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Womeri with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 3. 2016 (Late Item A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and temis and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
Stale may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Fonn P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block l.IO to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11 Notwithstanding any oOier provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
fiinds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

C«/OHHSnOCS13

\



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effecljve upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Heaith.anll Human Services

Date Terry SrfiiOT"
Director

£

Contractor Name:

Date Name:

^'fe: c^v-W^n.-

AcknowledMment: Tr \ \ i
State of of J HltytJ on 7)/<'/^£?n .
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

EMVtDW.MARTINEUJ
JusUco of the PoQoe - New HampsNre
My Oormtalon 67*83 24,2018

Nam* 6r>d TfV« of Notary or Justice of th* Peace

C«/DHHS't00013



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

5 n
4"

1/

Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFiCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Tilie:

CA/QHHytOaZII
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
^ 3-:? pp.:

Je&ey A. Meyera

CotDtDisaioner

, Terry R. Smith
Director

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-052-3345 Ext. 9474

FAX: 603-271-4637 TDDAccesa: l-SOO-735-2964 ww«:dhha.ob.eov

July 25, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authon'ze the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices to enter Into a sole source
agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (Vendor # TBD), 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment sen/ices,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound sen/ices to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and a(e homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless In Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $482,119, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95^5-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $482,119

Total: $482,119

EXPLANATION

This agreement Is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other two (2) agreements once they are received from the vendors.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment sen/ices;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to. pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming horheiess.
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The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the. 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing trte^'State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract Is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. The vendor will provide sen/ices that assist families with reducing and removing
barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families In ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants'
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Ass^sment to create a
holistic biopsychosociai assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

• Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

This agreement includes language to renew contract services .for up to two (2) yejars
subject to satisfactory provision of services, available^funding, and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
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pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

&

•:^O^Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by:
J^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77ie Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is tojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venloD S/8/1S)
Subject OPEN DOORS Homelttsness Prevention & Supports for Uw Income Pregnant and Parentipg Women with Substance Use

Diy>rdera fSS-20l7.DFA-0[-Ooend-0?1

Nottce: This agreeiuent and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contracL

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Departmeat of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Hope on Haven Hill. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

326 Rochester Hill Road

Rochester, NH 03867

l.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)834-0766

1.6 Account Nun^er
05-95-45-450010-6146

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2017 SSOOiO^ $482,119
1.9 Contracting OfiTicer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature . 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Si^tory

0^ c.nr» BooaJi pfl>\fcchrs
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of l4»^J^County of

^.before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
rsoh whose name is signed in block Ml, and ackDowledgcd that s/he executed this document in the capacity

■" AJ2.
l3.lMfiBit%t^^^otaiy Public or Justice of the Peace

COMMISSION As  t

-w ofNotary or Justice of the Peace

1.14 State Agency Signature

Date i(^

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by thcN.H. Dqiartmemof Adnunistration, Division of Pcrsoi^i^ (if applleoble)

By: ' Director, On:

1.17 Approval byjhc Attorney General

By:

Subst and Execution) (if applicable)

on:

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By On:
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2. EMPLOVMENTOFCONTRACTORySERVICESTO

BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block >.1 ("Stale"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfonn,
and the Cootroctor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideoiified and more particularly described to the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless 00 such approval is rcqtiired, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Datc'O-
3.2 ffthe Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services perfbrmed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liabili^ to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Cootractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and conttniied appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment unu'I such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to termioate this Agreement imtnediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B >^cb ts Incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to oSset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7>c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contnuy, and ootwltfastanjing unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obli^tion or duty upon the Contractor,
including, ̂  imt limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This ihay include the requirement to utilize atixiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the tern of ibis Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afFirmativc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity*'), as supplemented by the
relations of the United States D^artment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
inclement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Scales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining conqrliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this AgreemenL

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perfonn the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all qjplicablc
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the. Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any pcnon who is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreeoient. This provision shall survive termioationofthis
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer speci fied in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the imetpretalion of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitutb^^wnt of de&ult hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this AgreemenL
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the. following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days ̂ m the date of the notice; and if the Event ofDe&uli is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreeraect, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contnctor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2J set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
(he Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infonnalion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 Ail data and any property wbicb has been received from
the State or purchased with fimds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event ofan early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATIOMO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contnctor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers* compensation
or other emoluments provided by tbe State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without tbe prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Ststc.

13. INDEMNIFICATION: The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its oflficers and
employees, fr̂ m and against any and all losses suftered by the
State, its ofHcers and employees, and any and all claims,
JiabiUlies or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and empbyees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which ifflmunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 con^rehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl.OOO.OOOper occuirence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagroph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the proper^.
14.2 The policies described in subparagrepb 14.1 berein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers liceos«l in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Conlntclor shall furnish to the Cootracting 0£5cer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this AgreemenL
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all reocwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attacbed and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the Insurer to
provide the Cootracd'og Oflicer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modificalion of the policy.

15. WORIOIRS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 0y signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, paymem of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreemeot.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof affer any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver ofthe right of the State to enforce each arid all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by ccitificd mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
^ven in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreemeot
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of coiutruction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any (bird parties and ibis Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. Tl^ headings througbcut the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the intcrpretatim, construction or meaning of the
provisions of ̂is Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the eveot any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This AgreemcDC, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4 Contractor Initials^4yiii^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Horneiessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
Include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an Individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an indisndual family
unless the parent Is employed in which case services cari be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support job retention and job advancement including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic Income support;

1.Z4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicald or private health Insurance
such as dental services, auto registration, personal care, and books and
tuition subject to department approval.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide' Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becorning homeless. .

1.4. The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or Increase
senrices that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicald provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership with DHHS to review/assist the
development of program processes, service provision, and overall program

' outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DHHS to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

Hope on Havsn HU, Inc. EidiQattA Contractor tniUat&.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A /

1.B.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considenng •
research, including research conducted by student Interns, using Individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.6.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval pn'or to Initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

, 1.9. The Contractor shall comply with the Department's Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record ail encounter notes, including, but not limited to. dient activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact Includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1. Screening

1.10.1.2. Feed determination

.  1.10.1.3. Admission

;1;i6??;4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrolimenl

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure alt encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and Include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that indude, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation In the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women In working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Hope on Haven HiD, Inc. Exhibit A Conlroctpr IniSiais Mt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women's
sut}stance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations. -

2.4.5.2.' Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, Including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initialintakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation Is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/producin'AP-21-Addiction-

2.5.3. Case assessments.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs teased upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but Is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-slte, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment ̂cillty pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 607.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the abilit^,to provide onslte substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that-^,
allow clients to remain In their homes while receiving scheduled onslte SUD°^'^'
treatment services.

TlhJtHope on Haven Ml, Inc. E)4^ibitA Contractor Mihiie _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A
2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pr^nant and parenting women

receiving services and the basic needs of her chjld(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing. ^

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children, who are under the age of
5 or not yet eligible for public school enrollment, into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Ciontractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk, of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, Including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe S[eep. in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of P^ialrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
ht1p7/cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
ht1p://pediatrics.aappubIlcations.org/content/pedlatrics/12B/5/e1341 .full.pdf.

2.8.3. Developmentaliy appropriate chiidcare shall be available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
chiidcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC. guidelines in regards to developmentaliy appropriate
chiidcare.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services or provide referrals to services, when
no appropriate services are Immediateiy available while managing a waiting list The
Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to Interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute Individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;^

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on tfie
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the

fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the dient if an emergerrt need arises, to assess and
respond.

Hope on Haven H3, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Inrtials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women vdth Substance Use Disorders

ExhibKA

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C. (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (IB), whicb shall include, but not be limited to:
2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.

/

2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.Z4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services. If necessary.

2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that inciudes, but Is not limited to:

2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.

2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.

2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services arvj sources of those services.

2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.

2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients

receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuItLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use Is not used as the sole reason for discharging clients
from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever Is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans Include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans Include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management sen/ices, which shall include but are not limited
to. linking women with community services within the area In which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials'''/^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing arrd recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment In Medlcald, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, Including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Ran to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.90v/product/TIP-27-ComprehensIve-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/pubilcatlonsAhe-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinlcai services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to futflll the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this Contract, which shali include, but is not limited to. behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice. In accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility
Rules. Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These
should include, but are not limited to:

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLaDC).

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol arxJ Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

Hope on Haven Hit. Inc. Exhibit K Contractor InlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LOS) credential to adequately provide for staff dinlcai
supennsion.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) full-time Individual with experience In child social emotional
development.

2.14.6. One (1) director/executive director. '

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist In order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure iivservtce training Is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offslte training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17:2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection control and universal precautions, Including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.3. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that Includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.4.1. Adult and Infant Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)

2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.4.4. Universal precautions (for what?)

Hopeon Havm H60, Inc. ExNbHA Contractor biitisls'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOO^ - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure services In this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.19. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompllance
from the Department, If the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement Including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified In the.corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to<late data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative Identifying barriers experienced when providing services In
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services In this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall attempt to contact 95% of the individuals on the waiting list
described In Section 2.4.3. at least one time per month.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services Identified In this contract are available to a minimum of 6 families in the New

Hampshire region.

5.2. The Contractor shall begin outreach activities to publicize contract services no later
than 90 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices Identified in Section 2.3.2 to the
Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the watting list described In Sectton 2.4.3 to
the Department every 60 days.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures In Section 2.10.3 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

Hope on Haven HiU, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Ndw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homeiossness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings
described in Section 2.10.5 to the Department no later than 60 days after the
contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shad provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016.

Hop« on Haven Hifl. Inc. exhibit A Contrador Initials
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Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Llmltatton, Block 1.8, In
accordance wth the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding Is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families. Temporary
Assistance for Needy Females Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which Identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior monthi The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37. General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may tie withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of noncompllance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the.State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price [imitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Govetoor and
Executive Council.

Hope or Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor



Exhibit B-1 Budget

Open Doors to provldo 50% of services for the year tor RESIDENTIAL FACILITY, remalnlrtg 50% to be made Irt matching funds with fundr^sers. donabons. billing tor direct
services. Outpatient services to begin within 6 months of contract 100% 61 services assigned Open Doors however bilDng system will be insfilued to bm for services covered
by medlcaid along with nomtnaJ fees for arKillary services provided. '

Expenses: 2016-2017

A. Personnel W

1. TOTAL SALARIES/WAGES;

Direct Program Staff:
•  HHH Program Director- (40.00 hrs/wk x $31.25 per hr x 52 wks) S 65,000 CO S 32,500.00

-  HHH COncial Dlrector-MLADC, LCISW (40.00 hrs/wk x $31.25 per hr x 52 wks) % 65.000.00 s 32,500.00

•  HHH MLDAC- (32.00 hrs/wk x S26.00 per hr x 52 wks) % 46,592.00 s 23,296X>0

'  HHH Case Manager-(20.00 hrs/wk x $16.71 perhrx52wks) $ 34,756.60 s 17.378.40

•  HHH 3 Overnight Staff- (48.00 hrsAvk x $15.40 per hr x 52 wks) (20.00 hrs/wk x
$14.98 per hrx 52 wks) (40.00 hrs/wk x $15.40 perhr x52 wks) $ 86,049.60 s 43.024.80

Total Direct Program Staff $ 297,398j40 1 148.699.20

Management Staff:
•  HHH ED- (20.00 hrs/wk x $31.26 per hr x 52 wks) $ 32,500.00 $ 16.250.00

■  HHH Admin Assist- (40.00 hrs/wk x $14.40 per hrx 52 wks) $ 29,952.00 5 14.976.00

•  HHH BilDng/Coder- (20.00 hrs/wk x S18.50 per hr x 52 wks) $ 19240.00- $ 9.620.x

Total Management Staff s 61.692X10 $ , 40.84e.X

Total Direct Staff e Management Staff $ 379,09040 S 169.545.20

TOTAL: SALARYWAGES (A) % 379.09040 $ 189.545.20

2. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Health, Dental, Life, STD, PICA. Unemployment, Workers Compensation = 20% of \> s 106.U521 5. 53,072.88

TOTAL; EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (B) t 106,14521 5 53,072.66

TOTAL PERSONNEL (A ♦ B) i' <BS.23S.71 $ 242.617.86

3. CONSULTANTS:

Development of Infrastructure 20.000.00 io.ooo

Total Consultant

Hope on Haven HIU, Irte.
SS>2017-OFA-02-Opend-02
1 of4

20,000.00

Contractor Initials:



Exhibit B-1 Budget

4. EQUIPMENT:

• Cell phone $400 x4, 5 agency laptops x 700, s 5.100X)0 S 2,550.00

Total Equipment % 5,100.00 i 2.550.00

SUPPLIES:

•  General Office Supplies % 5,000.00 s 2,500.00

■  Education Supplies families $ 1,000.00 $ 500.00

Total Supplies $ e,oooAO 5 3,000.00

TRAVEL:

-  Staff Travel Reimbursement ($.50 per mile x 40 miles/week x 3 staff x 52 weeks) s 3,120.00 5 1,560.00

Total Travel $ 3,120.00 5 1,560.00

OCCUPANCY:

facilities lease based on fair market rate $14.00 triple net $ 31.640.00 5 15.820P0

snow and lawn care s 4,000.00 $ 2.000X10

repairs and maintenance s S.OOOPO 5 Z.SOOXX)

Utilities s 6.660.00 S 3.440.00

Total Occupancy s 47.520A0 9 23,760.00^

CURRENT EXPENSES:

■ Telephone ($200Anonth cell 55 x4 X 12 s 5.040.00 $ 2,520.00

background check s 1,150.00 $ 575.00

' Postage $ 1.000.00 $ 500.00

■  Subscriptions; s sooxto 5 250.00

• Payroll s 3,5001)0 5 1,750.00

■ Audit and l^al i 10.000DO $ 5,000.00

Meals without USDA reimbursement $3fme8l/day/adult I 26,260.00 9 13.140X)0

deanlr^g and laundry supplies $ 2.000PO 9 1.000.00

Child Care $ 20.000.00 9 10,000.00

Transportation s 10,000.00 9 5.00QX)0

Nonmedical Services not covered by medlcald $ 20,000.00 9 10.000X10

■  Insurance includes Malpractice, General Liability and Property Insurance, state license fee, auto Insur S 9.760.00 9 4,890.00

Total Current Expenaee s 109,250^)0 9 S4,625X)0

Hope on Haven HOI, Inc.
S5-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

9. Software:

Total Software

10. Marketing / Communications
■  Flyers, Brochures, PSA's. Website, business cards
Total Marketing/Communications

11. STAFF EDUCATIONnWUNING:

'  Professional Development

Total Staff Education/Training

12. SUBCONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS:

Total Subcontracts/Agreements

13. OTHER:

Funds for translation services for families requiring this service
Total Other

14. Outpatient Staff for waitllstftransHIonlng residents
Staff MLADC ; 32 hr/wk x $28 per hr x 52 wk
Substance Use Disorder Counselor; 32 hr/wk x $15.61 per hr x 52 wk
Case Manager 0.5 PTE; 20 hr/wk x $16.71 per hr x 52
Total Outpatient staff

15. Total Benefits Outpatolrft Staff: as above 28% salary
16. Current Expenses as above: 25% for Outpatient services
17. Outpatient l^ease Space

Total

2,000.00 $

2,000.00 $

Z500.00 $

2AOO.OQ S

4,250.00 $

4.2S0XI0 S

1,000.00 s

1,000.00 s

1.000.00

1.000.00

1,250.00

1250X)0

2,125.00

2,125.00

SOObO

500.00

$46,592.00

$25,975.04

$17,376.40

$69,945.44

$25,164.72

$27,312.50

$24,000.00

-68S,97i71. -.$482,118,01

Hope on Haven HDI, Inc.
SS-2017'OF A-OS-Opend-^n
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I ' (3424«-T1)

REVENUE

NH Mftdlcaid pr«{jnant woman/day S162.60 avg stay 180 dayv x 4 women
NH MedlcsU woman and ehU/day S22B.00 avg stay 180 days x 4 women
Sail Pay $550/ day stay-i SO d^ x 1 woman
Donations

Dewalopmenl Based on 2015-2016 figures
Opan House
GoR Tournament

Pancake Breakfast

Pal Gala

Twice iha Fun

117,072.00

164.160.00

10,000.00

8,500.00

30,000i>0

1.000.00

10,000.00
5.WO.OO

TOTAL 343.73240

Contractor Initials:,3
Hopa on Haven HID, Inc.

SS-20t7-OFA-02-Opend-02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVtSIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance wKh Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
Shan maintain a data file on each recipient of sen/ices hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determlnaUon and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

'4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Oepartrnent regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parlies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any sen/ices provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as othenvise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such ser^ces.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs; ^

Ejrfiibit C - special Provlskwis Contractof InHtaia » J ^
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Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determirre the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foilo^ng records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance wth accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. MMical Records: Where appropriate arwJ as prescribed by the Department regulatioris. the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Marwgement and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and. the period for retention hereunder, the

DepartmenL the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, (hat pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and fbr purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the admlnlslration of the Department or the Contractor's responstbilitles with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the reclpienL his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Spedol Pro^rfsions Contrado/ Initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times rf requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Writteri interim financial reports containing a detailed desaiption of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of.payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirfy (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract The Rnal Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals artd objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain ttie right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All.documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the perfomiance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any fricilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of f^eral,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or pemilL In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Ran (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Fomr to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an •
EEOP Certification Fonn to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certiricalion form to the OCR to dalm the exemption,
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/certpdf.

17. Limited English Proftclency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and iSafe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currenUy. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whictleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by s^'on 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Ks employees In writing, in the predomir^ant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
sut>contracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(3). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funct]on(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C-Special Provisions Conlfaetor iniUalt
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviev/ed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If (he Contractor Identifies de^clencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contrect, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each sen/ice that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of b'me or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilatbn of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contrect will not supplant any existing federal funds avaDable for these services.

Ej4\ibn C - Spedal Provfsions
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any sut>sequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provid^ In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in pad In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
Stale shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shell not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Z  Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early temnlnatlon, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transitbn Plan to the Slate as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transiUoned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninternjpled delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of sei^ces and approval by the
Govemor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5180 of the Drug-Free Worlcplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Worlcplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide su^enslon or debarment. Contractors using this fOrm should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manutecture. distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and spedfying the'actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoirig drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring iii the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identiftcation number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taldng appropriate personnel acton against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehat^illtation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug atnjse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Impiementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the speclTtc grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on (lie that are not Identified here.

Contractor.Name:

■Bax'ul ^

Exhibit D-COf^«ationT«serdlns Drug Free Contractor Irttialt
Workptaca Require
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provistons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law'101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cer^fication:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•MedicakJ Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for infiuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a f^mber of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract,.grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>^rantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatrve agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-i.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certfication be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disdose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite fdr making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subfect to a civil penalty of not less than $10.CXIO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

VVi (LSiA fajLrXrfy^

Eitfiibit E - Certincatlon Regarding Lobbying Contiactor initials fl VX AA
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILtTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CPR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary,.the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of M^y it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection v^th the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary partidpant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terhnlnate this transaction for cause or defaulL

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary partidpant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
drcumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' "debarred,* "suspended," "ineligible,* "tower tier covered
transaction,' 'partidpant.' 'person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily exduded," as used in this dause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and .
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary partidpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, dedared ineligible, or voluntarily exduded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the
clause titled 'Certiftcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Indlgibility and Voluntary Exdusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solidtatlons for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partidpant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not deterred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knov^ that the certification Is erroneous. A partidpant may
decide the method and frequency by which it detennines the eligibility of its prindpals. Each
partidpant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

\)^U
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor IniUals I I V/v\

And Other Responsibilily Mattert A loc^ 111 />
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certiftes to the best of Hs knowledge and belief, that It and Us
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commi^Ion of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubfic (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezdemenl, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property: .

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise chminally or civilly charged t)y a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (])(b)
of this certirication; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminatf^J for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Inellglbility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modificatloh In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: CT^

'  ̂ m'\(

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Sucpension Contractor initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

CERTIRCATiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and wilt require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscrlmination requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute frorn discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5S72(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the ba^s of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from disalminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the deiivery of
services or t>enefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Secfions 12131-34), M4iich prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunlty for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
go^emment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U-S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 61064)7), which prohlttits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlj^mination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 arxf The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Rt)gram for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide susperrsion or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor InitiaJs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grourtds of race, color, religton, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Orhbudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foilowing
cerfrflcation:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Exni&nG

Contractor Iniilais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PuUlc Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, fecilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald ̂ jnds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civB monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible, entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Chlidren Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

/-{(fic GT) k\\\

EitiibH H - Certirication Reganjing Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individuaiiy Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Assoa'ate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information .under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aagreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinica! Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Infonnation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HiPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. \\a i-i

3/2014 ExhIWtl Contractor IntUals It ] V/Vl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Inforination that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the sen/ices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business A^oclate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Busiriess Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or ̂ jrther disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dtsdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such di^osure, the Business

3/2014 ExhiUt I Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Assodale shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy arxJ Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblloatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Infonmatlon and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when H becomes
av/are of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

' o The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
types of identlfters and the likelihood of re^identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made:

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

Trie Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shal) make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI receNed from, or created or
received t^y the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving.PHIno PHI ,

3/2014 Exhibit I Contiactor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this,Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnlficatipn from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to proNnde an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within tv/o (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall.instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify ^
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business As^clate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI, has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business. ̂  i
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shal) certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
. Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard teims and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

j

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Ride, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to fame as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. . /

3/2014 Exilibftr Contfaclor InitiaisX^X
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e. Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invaiidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shail survive termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of^thohzed Representative
P

Title of Authorized Representative

l  j I (a
D

t\/ppi, oy\ UxfAAnUfll
Name of the Contractor

ate

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

- (hMA/L nf-
Title of Authorized Representative

nM<e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and assodated first-tier sut>-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFf^ Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the foilowing information for any
sut>award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundirtg action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS ff)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is rriade.^
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 ofthe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions
execute the foilowing Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

htV&c^S j fic^ cmfkujey\h\(l

ExMbit J - CertKicstlon Regarding tnc Federal Rinding Contractor initiab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

j

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: l^g'OOgg.^05?'

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to Wl above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to InformaUon about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13ta) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 76o(d)) or section 6104 of Internal Revenue Cede of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:

Name:.

Name:.

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amourrti

Amount:

cuo»«4sn 10713
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